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DLA Piper International LLP

Members' report
for the year ended 30 April 2023

The Board presents its report on behalf of the members of DLA Piper International LLP {“the LLP")
together with the audited consclidated financial statements of the LLP and its subsidiary undertakings
(*the Greup”) for the year ended 30 April 2023.

Principal activities
The Group’s principal activity is the provision of legal services.

Group structure
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the LLP and the Group.

The subsidiary undertakings of the LLP as at 30 April 2023 are set aut in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Business review

The Group had another year of strong performance. Revenue for the year ended 30 April 2023 was
£1,408.6 million (2022: £1,240.3 million), a 13.8% increase on the prior year, driven by increased
average hilling rates and fee earner headcount.

Wages and salaries increased by £54.1 million {14.6%) from £370.5 million to £424.6 million. Other
external operating expenses increased by £89.6 million (30.1%) from £298.1 million to £387.7 million.
The increase in costs were driven by an increase in both headcount and travel costs which were
previously affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Coupled with this, inflation drove up many of the costs
incurred in running the Group's opwrations.

The profit available for discretionary division among members increased by £45.9 millien (11.5%) from
£399.0 million to £444.9 million.

The Group balance sheet remains strong, with an increase in net assets of £54.5 million (10.1%) from
£537.2 million to £591.7 million.

The Group has recognised a net gain of £2.6 million (2022: loss of £31.9 million) in respect of profits
and losses on agreed sale or closure of non-core businesses. In the prior year the Group previded for
its anticipated disposal of its Russian subsidiary (DLA Piper Rus Ltd). The disposal completed on 31
May 2022, resulting in a credit in the current year of £5.2 million (2022 loss of £31.9 million). This
credit is offset by a provision of £2.6 million in relation to the expected reduction in the Group’s
shareholding in Toko Limited. Further details can be found in note 28,

The Group successfully transitioned onto a new HR and finance system during the second half of the
year. The implementation of the new finance system had an impact on billing during the one-month
cutover period which resulted in increased trade receivables, reduced cash balance and increased
utilisation of the Group credit facilities at the year-end. Sufficient headroom still existed on these
facilities at the date of signing the financial statements.

Future developments

The outlook remains positive for the Group with a steady increase in profits expected. The members
anticipate further growth whilst also recognising the continuation of the inflationary pressures that were
seen for much of FY23 which will inevitably see an increase in the Group's cost base.
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Subsequent events

In October 2023 the Firm successfully refinanced its banking facility agreements made up of
committed revolving credit facilities (RCF) totaliing £117.5 million which were due to mature on 29
February 2024 and a committed £50 million overdraft due to mature on 31 December 2023. The new
three-year banking facility (with two optionat one-year extensions) is a £160 million RCF. The final
maturity date of the new facility is 10 October 2026. The RCF are supplemented by £40 million non-
commitied overdraft facilities which are reviewed annually.

Further details can be found in note 31.

There are no undisclosed significant events affecting the Graup since the year end, up to the date of
approval of these financial statements, other than those disclosed above.

Auditor
Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and expect to continue

as auditor, subject ta approval fram the Board.

Designated members and the Board of DLA Piper International LLP {“the Board")
The designated members (as defined in the Limited Liability Partnerships Act 2000) of the LLP, during

the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were:

- Vinita Arora {appointed 1 Oclober 2023)

- Kit Burden {appointed 1 January 2023)

- Kevin Chan

= Fanny Combourieu (appointed 1 January 2023)
- Marta Frackowiak

- Bruno Giuffre

- Jonathan Hayes (appointed as Board Chair 1 May 2022)
- Steffen Kaufmann (resigned 31 May 2022)

- Simon Levine

~  Suzannah Newhoult

- Samantha O'Brien

- Jonathan Watkins {resigned 31 December 2022)
- Colin Wilson (resigned 31 July 2023}

The Board consisted of the designated members listed above, Amber Wilkinson (Chief Financial
Officer), Lou Pagnutti (Non-executive Board member}, Ana Garcia Fau (Non-executive Board member
and Audit Committee Chair) and Kirsten Lange (Non-executive Board member appointed 1 September
2023).

A list of members’ names is available from Companies House.

Ftnancing and the subscription and repayment of members’ capital
The Group is financed through a combination of membaers' capital, undistributed profits and borrowing

facilities provided by a number of banks. Borrowings increased in the year from £13.0 million to £100.2
million, largely due to financing for the capital investment and implementation of the new finance and
HR systems.

The total amount of members' capital contributions is proposed to members by the Board, having
regard to the requirements of the Group. Individual members' capital contributions are set by reference
to equity profit share proportian, or in the case of hon-equity members, camprise either a fixed amaount
or a percentage of profit share, and are repayable, at par, following the member's retirement.
Members' capital is classified as a iability as it is repayable to members upon departure.
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The Group cash flow forecasts and sensitivity analyses have been reviewed as part of the on-going
management of the business and the Members are confident that headroom under the new and
existing banking agreement remains adequate and there is a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements continues to be adopted.

Members' profit shares
Members are remunerated solely out of the profits of the Group and are personally responsible for

funding pensions and other benefits. Profit sharing ratios are agreed by equity members based on
proposals from the Board.

Profit allocation and members' drawings

Under the members agreement, the final division and allocation of profits to thase who are members
during the financial year occurs following the finalisation of the annual financial statements. During the
year, members receive monthly drawings which represent payments on account of current year profits
and are reclaimable from members until profits have been allocated. In addition, members receive
distributions, relating to profits divided in prior years. The timing and amount of the profit distributions
is decided by the Board, taking into account, inter-alia, the Group’s cash requirements for operating
and investing activities. Unallocated amounts are shown in “Members’ other interests” (note 22).

Statement of members' responsibilities
The members are responsible for preparing the Members’ Report and financial statements in
accordane with applicable law and requlations.

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts & Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations
2008 require the members to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs).

international Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial
year the firm's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the
definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements’. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance
with all applicable IFRSs. However, members are also required to:

. properly select and apply accounting policies;

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements of the financial

reporting framework are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the firm’s financial position and financial
perfarmance.
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The members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial positian of the firm and enabile them to ensure that the financiat
statements comply with the Companies Act 2008, as applicable to limited liability partnerships. They
are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the firm and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The members are respansible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the firm's wabsite. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

These responsibiiities are exercised by the Board on behalf of the members.

Disciosure of information to the auditor

So far as each member of the Board is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the LLP's
auditor is unaware. Relevant information is defined as information needed by the LLP’s auditor in
connection with preparing their report.

Each member of the Board has taken all the steps (such as making enguiries of other members of the
Board and the auditor and any other steps required by their duty to exercise due care, skilt and
diligence) that he/she ought to have taken in hisfher duty as a member in order ta make
himselffherseif aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the LLP’s auditor is aware
of that information.

This report has been agreed by aft the members and is signed on their benalf by:

P,

Jon Hayes
Senior Partner
17 November 2023
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Introduction

As aleading international law firm, DLA Piper is fully committed to reducing both energy use and carbeon
emissions across the Group and Brand Integrated Firms. The Group is committed to deliver its SBTi
validated near term science-based target to halve emissions across scopes 1, 2 and 3 by 2030 and
achieve net zero by 2040 against the baseline year of 2015, Procurement of gocds and services as
well as business travel are the most significant contributors to the Group’s environmental footprint and
these are addressed by the Group’s ambitious sustainability targets and commitments.

This report has been prepared to meet the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting requirements in
accordance with the Group's regulatory abligation to report greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions pursuant
to the Companies (Members' Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)
Regulations 2018.

Effective for the first time this year, The Climate-related Financial Disclosure Regulations 2022 have
been introduced in the UK to report on material climate-related matters and their impact on the Group.
For the year ended 30 April 2023, the Group meets the relevant threshald of having more than 500
employees and a turnover of mare than £500 million. The Group has therefare set out below the climate-
related disclosures covering how climate change is addressed in corparate governance, the impacts on
the strategy, how climate-related risks and opportunities are managed, and the performance metrics
and targets applied in managing these issues.

Further details about the Group’s strategy for reducing carbon footprint and net zero transition plan has
been provided in the Sustainability Report 2022/23, available at hitps://Awww.dlapiper.com/en-gb/about-
us/sustainability/sustainability-reporting/sustainability-report-22-23.

Governance

The Board holds ultimate responsibility for the Group's environmental performance. The role of
Managing Director, Sustainability & Resilience, which sits on the Executive Committee, I1s respensible
for coordinating and intensifying the Group's actions across Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG), Sustainability and Responsible Business. The Managing Director is supported by various
committees that drive forward the Group's sustainability strategy and execute action plans. This includes
the International Energy and Climate Change (IECC) committee that works closely with the key internal
stakeholders across the international offices and reports directly to the Executive.

Action on climate change is the Group’s biggest environmental priority. We have several firm-wide
policies around envircnmental sustainability, including Environmental Sustainability policy, Energy
Management policy, Sustainable Procurement Policy, and Supplier Code of Conduct. The Board
reviews these policies as well as approving budgets in relation to investments required to address
climate-related risks and opportunities.

We are certified to 1SQO 14001:2015 standard globally, and to I1SO 50001:2018 and Carbon Trust
standards in the UK. We are signatories of the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) and annually
report the Group’s progress against the ten principles and select Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs) via the Group's Sustainability Report.

Strategy

Our strategic response to climate change focusses on the transitional and physical risks and
opportunities for our business. We assess climate risks and opportunities across different climate
scenarios (current policy, delayed transition and Net Zero 2050) using short (2022-2028), medium
(2028-2034), long-term {2035-2040) and very long-term (2041-2050) time horizons in looking at their
potential impacts on our business. Our approach is informed by our climate scenario analysis and over
the coming years, our 2040 Net Zero strategy.

As we are at the early stages of formulating the Group's net zero transition plan, all actions in the below
‘response’ calumn are planned for completion in the next 12-24 months, falling into the short term time
horizon. These key risks and opportunities will evolve over time.
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[ Energy and Carbon Commitments

Risk

Inability to meet
energy and carbon
perfaormance
commitments might
resultin
reputational risk to
brand value,
decreased
credibility,

and increased
rmarketing costs.

Impact

DLA Piper's international offices (57
across 40 countries) do not yet
cansistently develop and implement
local plans aligned with a strategic
framewaork for achieving the firm's
sctence-based performance targets.
The Net Zero 2050 and Delayed
Transition Scenarios present the
highest risk as corporate climate
performance, legislative
requirements and stakeholder
scrutiny all increase,

Response

The Group has implemented a data
management framework and supporting
mechanism that enables reporting and
third-party verification. It also captures
scope 3 supplier specific GHG intensity
factors and tracks progress against goals
and commitments, at least semi-annually
on an international level. To ensure
consistency and ownership, international
offices have been engaged to set local
sustainability ptans and office-specific
targets.

Time horizon: short term.

Attract and retain talent

Risk

Lack of proper
integration of
sustainability into
the business may
impact the Group's
ability to attract and
retain talent.

Impact

Attraction and retention of talent is
core to the provision of quality legal
services and is increasingiy
influenced by carbon and
sustainability drivers. For this reason,
sustainability and ESG-based
reputation are viewed by DLA Piper
as critical alongside other retention
and attraction measures that the
Group promote.

The likelihood of this risk is highest in
the short-term because the war for
talent has become fiercer in the post-
pandemic warld.

Response

The Group monitors external recruitment
trends and internal perceptions of its
employees. ESG involvement and
performance s being embedded into job
descriptions and linked to annual
performance review and remuneration.

Time horizen: short term.

Climate policies

Risk

Internal and
external climate
policies such as
carbon taxes &
offsets could lead
to increased costs
throughout the
supply chain.

Impact

In 2019, the UK government
published a Net Zero Strategy,
sefting out policies for decarbonising
al! sectors of the UK economy to
meet the net zero target by 2050.
Carbon taxation on the energy supply
chain may increase procurement
costs, further exacerbating the
energy pricing risk bought about by
geopolitical unrest and reliance on
fossit fuels.

Response

The Group is investing into technologies
and processes to reduce its energy
consumption such as optimisation of
energy in buildings, automation to
improve consistency in integrating
sustainable procurement practices,
reduction of business travel, procuring
electricity fram renewable electricity
generators or sellers, a Power Purchase
Agreement (PPA) and development of
carbon accounting and carben pricing
mechanisms.

Time horizan. short term.
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L.ow-carbon services

Risk

Inability to service
demand far new
low-carbon
services or
sustainability
praducts due to a
lack of innovation
or collaboration
with clients.

Opportunity

Increased climate
reqgulations and
litigations may
create greater
demand from
clients {especially
those highly
exposed to carban-
intensive sectors)
for legal services,
therefore
increasing fee
earning potential.

Impact

It is expected that the Group's clients
will increasingly seek low-carbon
legal services as they commit to
climate action. Failing to develop and
deliver low-carbon services and
procurement risks competitive
disadvantage, reputational damage
and loss of ravenue streams.

Forging a reputation as a firm who
adds to business resilience through
offering services that enable
transition to a lower-carbon economy
could present a significant
opportunity to DLA Piper,

Response

The Group continuously invests in
upskilling its lawyers in ESG. The Group's
main focus is on how, as a global firm, it
uses its expertise and influence to
encourage and support its clients in their
journey towards sustainability, climate
change adaptation, opportunity
positioning and future proofing.

Over the next 12 months, the Group is
developing a sustainable instruction for its
clients. The Group's approach will allow
clients to measure the embedded carbon
intensity of each instruction and drive
associated carbon reduction, thereby also
supporting clients to reduce their scope 3
emissians.

The approach will also allow for co-
financing of climate resilience projects
that will address climate adaptation
challenges, deliver positive sacial
impacts, and support transiticn towards a
low-carbon economy. However, to scale
up this opportunity, in the short-to-medium
term, the Group will need to invest in
automation for data gathering, analytics
and reporting.

The Group is developing a methodology
for advised emissions, both internally and
working collaboratively across the sector,
eventually linking with client intake,
sustainable instruction and other DLA
Piper offerings.

Time horizon: short term.

Green eriergy procurement

Opportunity

Reduce emissions
footprint through
procurement of
green energy.

Impact

The Group has a high electric
renewable sourcing and has
committed to achieve a fully
renawabie supply. On-site
generation, PPA’s and monitoring
can help capitalise on this
oppartunity.

Response

The Group entered intc a Power
Purchase Agreements (PPA) (the first by
any law firm) with a third party renewable
developer to generate additionality and to
reduce exposure to grid consumption.

The Group is also reviewing investment
opportunities to micro-generate renewable
energy at long-term office locations (e.g.
roof solar panels).

Time horizon: short term.
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Climate scenario analysis

The Group uses several risk models to determine which climate-related risks and opportunities could
have a substantive financial or strategic impact. These risk models were applied throughout the entire
value chain, and considered three climate scenarios, across four time-horizons:

+ for physicai risks the "Global Perit Diagnostic" and “Climate Diagnostic* models were used for
current and future physical climate hazards, and "Property Quantified” and "Katrisk’s SoloKat"
models utilised to assess expected financial damages;

s for transition risks - the Network for Greening the Financial System (NGFS) framework for three
scenarios: Orderly — Net Zero 2050 (1.5°C) [aligned te RCP 2.8], Disorderiy — Delayed transition
{aligned to RCP 4.5] and Hothouse world — Current policies [aligned to RCP 8.5].

The resuits of physical risk modelting indicated that:

s Qver 70% of assets are exposed to winter storms, 47% of assets are exposed to tomado and
21% are exposed to flash floads (surface water runoff), 14% to river floads and 15% to costal
floods.

« It is likely that the exposures to river floods will increase te 19% for the conservative RCP 8.5
climate scenario by 2040. For winter storms and tornados, it is more uncertain whether these
hazards wilt increase in their frequency and/or severity in the wake of climate change.

+ For several regions such as Scuth Africa, Middle East, and Australia there is high exposure to
chrenic hazards like drought stress (17% of assets), moderate exposures to heat streas (heat
waves and tropical nights, 26% of assets) and moderate exposure to precipitation (21% of
assets).

+ Under the conservative RCP 8.5 scenario, assets located in chronic heat stress zones are likely
to remain moderate ta high risk with exposure increase to 38% of assets. For precipitation, the
exposure increases to 23% of assets and for the same scenario the exposure to the drought
stress changes significantly to 46% of assets in comparison to 17% based on current climatic
conditions.

The madelling for transition showed that:

» Key transition nsks and opportunities were identified and taken through to high level scenario
analysis,

s The most impactful transition risks under the “Hothouse - Current Policies” scenario was DLA
Piper’s ability to attract and retain talent, energy price instability impacting OLA Piper aperations
and lack of business resilience due to slow or ineffective implementation of sustainability
strategies.

« Under the “Disordeny - Delayed Transition” scenario the highest impact risks were climate
policies and demand from clients for low-carbon services.

* In the “Net Zero 205(" scenario, the most impactful risks were DLA Piper's ability 1o fulfil its
GHG commitments and demand for low-carbon services.

Risk management

At DLA Piper, we have adopted a "three lines of defence" gevernance model and apply the Enterprise-
Wide Risk Management (ERM) approach. The Group's climate-related risk management is integrated
inta the multi-disciplinary company-wide risk management process, which covers all risks, all
jurisdictions, all practice groups and sectors and all DLA Piper premises. As such, climate-related risks
within DLA Piper are managed consistently with other business risks.

The frequency of risks/opportunities review is typically on an annual hasis, however, we continue to
refine climate-related strategic and financial impacts as well as mitigation measures and will monitor
progress at least quarterly.

To make sure that the greatest risks are tackied first, alt risks were ranked using the risk matrix, where
impacts are analysed across eight parameters (e.g. strategic, people, operational, financial, etc) and
their likelihood to occur. The opportunities were ranked based on their materiality and cost-benefit (or
return on investment) assessment.

8
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The level of response is determined by the rating of the risks or opportunities and their time horizons:
- low risks and opportunities are typically dealt with at the office level,
- medium to high risks and opportunities are monitored by the Executive and the Risk Committee;
- higher risks with shorter time horizon are prioritised.

Metrics and targets
The Group’s science-based targets have been set by the Board and validated by the Science-based
Targets initiative (SBTI).

Near-term, the Group has a target to halve its emissions across all scopes by 2030 from the 2018
baseline year which was validated in September 2021. The Group’s longer-term target to become a Net
Zero firm by 2040 was validated by the SBTi in June 2023.

As we finalise the Group's net zero transition plan, perfoermance monitoring and reporting will evolve to
incorporate management of climate related risks and implementation of opportunities. During this
reparting period the Group's main focus was on monitoring performance against science-based targets
using a number of operational KPls, for example:

« We use the Group's energy optimisation programme to achieve 20% reduction in energy use
(scope 2) by 2030 from a baseline use of 17,720,057 kWh across the UK and internaticnal
offices (current use 13,922,261 kWh);

« \We aim to buy electricity from suppliers/generators of 100% renewable electricity (scope 2) by
2030 in all UK / European cffices and top ten non-EU offices. Baseline use in this respect is
9,945 185 kWh (56% of total electricity consumed), current use is 9,016,479 k\Wh (65% of total
electricity consumed),

s We aim to eliminate use of natural gas (scope 1) in our offices by 2030. Baseline use in this
respect is 5,135,221 kWh, cuirent use 6,307,396 kWh.
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GHG emissions and energy usage

During the year ended 3¢ April 2023, the Group's total gross GHG emissions (location-based) totailed

75073 1C02e. This comprised:

GHG emissions for the period 1st May 2022 - 30th April 2023, tCQOe

Scope 1 emissions

Emissions from stationary combustion
Emissions from mobde combustion
Fugitive emissions

Total Scope 1 enissions

Scope 2 emissions
Location hased electricity
Market based electricity

Total Scope 1+2 {location based emissions)
Total Scope 1+2 {market based emissions}

Scope 3 emissions
Frocurement
Water supply
Capital geads
Other suppliers
FERA emissions
Emissions from waste
Emissions from business travel
Emissions fom employee commuting {estimated)
Enussions from homeworlding
Emisgions from upstream transportation (couriers)

Total Scope 3 emissions.

Total gross emissions {location based)
Total gross emissions {market based}

2023 2

UK Offshore Total UK Oifshore Total
&78 300 1.178 843 466 1,409
- 77 77 - 95 95
g 144 13% 7 12 19
A 836 paty 1,404 9540 513 1,583
8 1.171 2435 3,606 1,338 2540 3,878
[ [ 23 232t - 1.824 1824
2,057 2,933 5,810 2,288 3113 s40
892 2,839 3,3 950 2,397 3347
3 7 10 4 3] 10
5050 4194 9,244 2.817 6513 0336
28,544 12739 41283 14,777 34,150 48,967
841 967 1,808 1,076 1174 2250
33 120 153 15 48 &3
3,557 8,108 11,682 505 1863  2.668

€61 2.283 2.944 372 1019 2451
14022 1,595 25617 1,220 2130 3350
105 242 347 26 216 242
33,816 30,253 70,069 N1 47,925 69,036
D 70,069 69,836
A+B+D 75,079 74,4371
A+C+D 73,800 72,383

Note: UK includes all offices in England and Scotiand. Offshore includes alf DLA Piper international LLP offices in EMEA and

Asta Pacific regions, as weil as Brand Infegrated Firms (The Noradics, Portugal and New Zealand).

Overall, the Group's total gross {location-based) emissions have increased by approximately 1% against
the previous year. However, overalt since the Group's baseline year {2019/20), emissions have
decreased by 41%. As such, the Group is on track to meet its target of halving its emissions across all

scopes by 2030.

The most significant increase was in business travel, where the Group's emissions increased from just
under 3,000 tCOe2 to just under 12,000 tCO2e, due to a resurgence of more normal business trave!
patterns post-pandemic. When compared ta the Group's baseline year, travel emissions are still only
at 54% aof what they were in 2019/20. We are taking active measures to reduce emissions fram
business travel in the coming years, including implementing country-level travel carbon budgets.

During the reporting period. the Group’s total energy consumption totalled 21,928 MWh, of which
approximately 49% was consumed in the UK. The split between fuels and electricity consumption is

displayed below.
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Energy consumption for the period 1 May 2022 - 30 April 2023, MWh

2023 2022
UK Offshore Total UK Offshore Total

Total electricity 6055 7,806 13,881 5,300 7,253 13,553
Fuels, of whitch:

- Matural gas 4.754 1,622 6.376 5,085 2519 1,614

- Petrol (mabile} - 293 233 - 225 229

- Petrol (stationary) - - - - - -

- Diesel (mobile} - 40 40 - 177 177

- Diesel (stationary} 1 2 3 1 - 1
Total fuels 4,755 1,957 6,712 5,096 2,925 8021
Self-generated eiectricity - - - - 5 5
Bistrict heating - 1.366 1,355 - 1,794 1,794
Total energy consumption 10,810 11,118 21,928 1,39 11,977 23,373

Energy efficient actions

We have developed and implemented an energy efficiency programme for the Group's UK and
internaticnal offices. This includes smart energy audits, installation of smart sensors to monitor plant
and space conditions, ongoing technical support to ensure implementation of opportunities and monthly
engagement with site feams to ensure continued focus on energy efficiency.

Key initiatives, either implemented or ongoing, currently include the following:

Developing a guidance booklet on energy optimisation good practice for all international offices.
Set up an online data management tool to improve energy use monitaring and reporting.
Increased temperature across all data centres internationally from 21°C to 24°C, which reduces
the energy required to ccol them.

Commence optimisation of the London building management system (BMS) in FY24,

Moved the Birmingham office into a more energy efficient building.

Following the move to our new Leeds office in 2024 the gas consumption across the entire
portfolio of international offices will have reduced by a total of 15%.

In FY23, the Group’'s UK offices have been re-certified against the 1SO 50001 standard and
have been awarded Advancing categary by the Carbon Trust against their new Route to Net
Zero standard,

The Board and Executive approved the firm’s virtual Corporate Purchase Power Agreement for
renewable electricity supply from a solar farm in the UK.

Invastment into a supplier engagemant platform that will support sustainable procurement
practices and the Group’s value chain carbon management was approved.

Overall, since the 2019 baseline year we have:

reduced the total electricity use by 22%, helped by offices included in the energy efficiency
programme.

reduced the total gas use by 8%, mostly due to savings from office maves.

improved energy efficiency by 47% per person across international offices.
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Emission intensity for the period 1 May 2022 — 30 April 2023, tCO2e per employee

Emission intensity for the period 1 May 2022 — 30 April 2023, tCOZe per full time employee

2023 2022
UK Offshore Total UK Offshore Total
Number of full ime employees 2,384 5,714 8,108 2,07 5,361 1,618
Emission intensity {location based} 175 58 %3 %6 9.1 93
Emission intensity {market based) 7.0 5.8 9.1 8.0 9.0 8.0

The carbon intensity increase in the UK is due to the change in procurement reparting. As we are now
able to split the emissions associated with procurement by country, it became clear that the UK gets
assigned the largest share of purchasing due to its central role for the rest of DLA Piper International
LLP.

Reporting boundary and methadology
The Group's emissions have been verified by an external third party according to the ISO 14064-3
standard.

We quantify and report the Group’s organisational GHG emissions in alignment with the World
Resources Institute’'s Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corparate Accounting and Reparting Standard and in
alignment with the Scope 2 Guidance. The Scope 2 Guidance requires that we quantify and report
Scope 2 emissions according to two different methodologies {“dual reparting”):

(i} the location-based method, using average emissions factors for the country in which
the reported operations take place; and

{if) the market-based method, which uses the actual emissions factors of the energy
procured.

We consolidate the Group's organisational boundary according tc the eperational control approach,
which includes all Group offices.

We have adopted a materiality threshold of 5% for GHG reporting purposes,

A list of members’ names is available from Companies House,

This report has been signed on behalf of the members by:

Moz

Jon Hayes
Senior Partner
17 November 2023



DLA Piper International LLP

Independent auditor's report
to the members of DLA Piper International LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Qpinion
In our opinion:

« the financial statements of DLA Piper International LLP (the ‘parent limited lability
partnership’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent limited liability parthership’s affairs as at 3C April 2023 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended;

« the Group financiai statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom adopted international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Repaorting Standards (IFRSs) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board {JASB);

+ the parent limited liability partnership financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial
Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008 as applicable to limited liability partnerships.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
« the consolidated income statement;
« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;
s the consolidated and LLP balance sheets;
« the cansolidated statement of changes in equity and total members’ interests;
. the consaolidated cash flow statement;
s the statement of accounting policies; and
+« the related notes 1 to 32.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial
statements is applicable law, and in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent LLP financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framewark” (United Kingdom Geanerally Accepted Accounting Practice),

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent LLP in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting
Cauncil’s (the ‘'FRC’s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of DLA Piper International LLP (continued)

Conclusions relating to going concern
In 2uditing the financial statements, we have cancluded that the members’ use of the going cancern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financia! statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have net identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and
parent LLP's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our respaonsibilities and the respansibilities of the members with respect to going concem are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The ather information comprises the information included in the Members’ report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The membaers are responsible for the other
inforration within the Members’ report. Cur opinian an the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we da nat exprass
any form of assurance canclusion thereon,

Our respaonsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
ta report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the statement of members’ responsibilities, the members are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal contral as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the Group's and the
parent LLP's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
caoncern and using the going concern basis cf accounting unless the members either intend to
liquidate the Group or the parent LLF or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
0.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of DLA Piper International LLP {continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located con the
FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
repor.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the Group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the
Group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations. We also enquired of management and the members abaout their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities including those that are specific to the Group’s business
sector.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that:

+ had a direct effect on the determinaticn of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. These included the UK Companies Act, pensions legislation and tax legislation;
and

+ donot have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included
the Solicitors Regulation Autherity Standards and Regulations.

We discussed armong the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as [T
specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud
and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.
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DLA Piper international LLP

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of DLA Piper International LLP (continued)

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in revenue
recognition, in particular around the valuation of unbilled time at year end. Our specific procedures
performed to address this risk are described below:

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the vatuation of unbilled time,
We reviewed the historical agcuracy of management’'s valuation of unbilled time at year-end,
We tested the mechanical accuracy of the modei used to value unbilled time at year-end; and
For a sample of matters, we challenged the valuation of unbilled time at year-end. This
included validating the valuation applied by inspecting evidence including timesheets, rate
cards (to test the standard chargeable rates for each location) and reievant bilts issued post
year-end.

In common with all audits under |SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific praocedures to
respond to the risk of management override.

In addressing the risk of fraud through managemant override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in
making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of
any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normai course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

+ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with pravisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect
on the financial statements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud,

« enguiring of management and in-house legal counsel concerning actuat and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-campliance with laws and regulations; and

» reading minutes of mestings of those charged with governance and correspondence with the
Solicitors Regulatory Autharity.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of DLA Piper International LLP (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception:
Under the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to limited liability partnerships we are required to report
in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Group or the parent LLP, or returns
adequate for our audit have nat been received from branches not visited by us; or
s the Group or the parent LLP financial statements are nat in agreement with the accounting
records and retums; or
+« we have not received all the infarmation and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to repart in respect of these matters,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the LLP's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to limited liability partnerships. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the LLP's members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no cther purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the LLP and the LLP's members as a body, for
our audit wark, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed.

YA

Jeremy Black {Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

17 November 2023
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated incotne statement
for the year ended 30 April 2023

Nate 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Revenue 2 1,408.6 1,240.3
Operating expenses
Staff costs 3 (4814 (4212)
Qther external charges {387.7) {298.1)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 {84.6) (81.7)
Other operating income 5.1 113
Operating profit 3] 460.0 450.6
Profit/(loss) on business disposals 28 2.6 {31.9)
Finance costs 5 (16.6) {15.9)
Finance income 5 1.2 0.4
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 447.2 403.2
Tax expense in corparate entities 7 {2.3) (4.2)
Profit for the financial year available for discretionary
division among members 22 444.9 399.0
Attributable to:
Members 443.7 398.0
Non-controlling interests 1.2 -

4449 390.0

All figures above relate to the principal activities of the Group.

All items dealt with in arriving at operating profit above relate to continuing operations.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Profit for the financial year available for discretionary
division among members 444.9 398.0
Other comprehensive incomef{expense):
items that will not be reclassified to the income statement:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 22 3.0 (1.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year 447.9 397.7
Attributable to:
Members 446.8 397.7
P 1.1 -
Non-controlling interests
447.9 397.7
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 8 90.8 721
Property, plant and equipment 9 84,2 87.6
Right-cf-use assets 10 290.4 304 .4
Investments 11 0.1 0.3
Derivative financiat instruments 14 3.2 3.4
Deferred tax asset 18 0.7 0.4
Total non-current assets 469.4 468.2
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 673.8 513.0
Confract assets 13 168.0 1424
Derivative financial instruments 14 0.3 04
Current tax assets 0.7 0.8
Cash and cash equivalents 64.0 105.3
Total current assets 806.8 7618
Total assets 1,376.2 1,229.8
Current liabiiities
Trade and other payables 15 2477 224.1
Cantract liabilities 18 18.0 137
Derivative financial instruments 14 - 0.1
Borrowings 17 54.9 13.0
Lease liabilities 18 43.3 46.7
Current tax liabilities 34 21
Provisions 21 16.5 223
Disposal liabilities held for sale 28 5.2 -
Total current liabilities 395.0 322.0
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 27.0 35,0
Lease liabilities 18 305.8 3237
Borrowings 17 45.3 -
Provisions 21 11.4 11.9
Total non-current liabilities 389.5 37086
Total liahilities 784.5 6928
Net assets attributable to members 591.7 537.2
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 April 2023 (continued)

Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Represented hy:
Loans and other debts due to members
Members' capital classified as a liability 22 185.4 173.2
Other amounts 22 109.1 71.0
Total loans and other debts due to other members 294.5 2442
Equity
Members' other interests: other reserves classified as equity 292.0 2939
Foreign currency translation reserve 22 2.1 0.9)
Non-controlling interests 22 31 -
Total equity 22 297.2 293.0
Total loans and equity 22 591.7 537.2

The financial statements on pages 18 to 76 were approved by the members of DLA Piper International

LLP on 17 November 2023 and were signed an their behalf by:

Jon Hayes Simon Levine
Senior Partner Managing Partner

DLA Piper International LLP

Registered Number QC305357
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DLA Piper International LLP

LLP balance sheet
as at 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
£'000 £:000
Non-current assets
Investments 11 9 9
Total non-current assets 9 9
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 1 1
Total current assets 1 4
Total assets 10 10
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 9 g
Total current liabilities 9 9
Total liabilities 9 8
Net assets attributable to members 1 1
Represented by:
Loans and other debts due to members
Members’ capital classified as a liability 22 1 1
1 1

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no separate income statement is presented
for the LLP. The LLP's result for the year was £nil (2022: £nil).

The financial statements on pages 18 to 78 were approved by the members of DLA Piper Interational
LLP on 17 November 2023 and were signed on their behalf by:

Jon Hayes Simon Levine
Senior Partner Managing Partner
DLA Piper International LLP Registered Number OC305357
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 April 2023

Group Note Other Foreign Total
reserves, currency
including translation
NCI reserve
£'m £'/m £'m
At 1 May 2021 303.6 04 304.0
Profit for the year attributable to members 399.0 - 398.0
Other comprehensive expense 22 - {1.3) (1.3)
Total comprehensive income / {expense) for the year 399.0 {1.3) 387.7
Divisian of profit to members 22 (408.7) - (408.7)
At 30 April 2022 and 1 May 2022 293.9 {0.9) 293.0
Profit for the year attributable to members 4437 - 4437
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 1.2 - 1.2
QOther comprehensive income 22 - 3.0 3.0
Total comprehensive income for the year 4449 3.0 4479
Division of profit to members 22 {443.7) - (443.7)
295.1 21 297.2

At 30 April 2023

No statement of changes in members' total interest has heen presented for the LLP as there was no
balance at the start or end of the year and no movement in the balance during the year.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Total members’ interests
as at 30 April 2023

Group LLP
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'m £'m £'000 £000
Loans and other debts due to members 22 294.5 2442 1 1
Loans and other debts due from members 12 {131.9) (109.3) - -
{included in receivables)
Members' other interests: other reserves 22 294.1 293.0 - -
classified as equity
Total members’ interests 22 456.7 4279 1 1
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DLA Piper International |L.LP

Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
£'m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 4472 403.2
Adjustments for:
Non-cash adjustments 23 818 115.8
Net changes in working capital 23 (121.7) (14.2)
interest paid 5 16.6 15.9
Interest received 5 {1.2) (0.4)
Tax paid {0.9) (3.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 421.9 516.5
Cash flows {used in)/from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {17.3) (14.8)
Purchase of intangible assets (45.1) (31.8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and 26 10
investments
Sale of subsidiary net of cash disposed of 0.1 {7.1)
Interest received 1.2 0.4
Net cash outflow used in investing activities (58.5) (52.3)
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DLA Piper International LLP

Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Nate 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Cash flows (used in)/from financing activities
Drawings and distributions to members 22 {421.3) (377.9)
Distributions to former members {(17.0} {30.2
Annuities paid to former members 21 (0.1} -
Capital contributions by members 22 37.1 17.6
Capital repayments to members 22 {23.8) {13.0)
Proceeds from borrowings 95.7 13.0
Repayment of borrowings {36.9) -
Repayment of capital element of lease liabilities (48.9) (42.9)
Interest paid in respect of lease liabilities (13.1) {13.8)
Repayment of capital element of software license fee liabilities {2.8) (1.8)
Other interest paid (2.4) {0.9)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {433.5) {450.0)
Met (decreasellincrease in cash and cash equivalents (70.1) 14.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yaar 105.3 91.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 04 (0.2}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 35.6 105.3
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and in hand 64.0 105.3
Overdraft 7 (28.4) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 35.6 105.3

A net debt reconciliation has been included at note 30.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies

General information

DLA Piper International LLP is a limited liability partnership incorporated in England and Wales under
the Companies Act 2008, as applicable to limited liability partnerships. The registered office is at 160
Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4HT. The entity is a parent and the nature of the Group's operations
and its principal activity is disclosed in the Members’ report.

Basis of accounting

The principal accounting policies adopted in the presentation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have all been applied consistently throughout the current and
preceding financial year, with the exception of any standards adopted in the current year.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

The financial reparting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the parent LLP financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” {(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

The financial statements have been prepared under the assumption that the Group operates on a
going concern basis and on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments which
are stated at thei lair valuc,

Going concern
in October 2023 the Firm successfully refinanced its banking facility agreements made up of

committed revolving credit facilities (RCF) totalling £117.5 million which were due to mature on 29
February 2024 and a committed overdraft facility due to mature on 31 December 2023. The new
three-year banking facility (with two optional one-year extensions) is a £160 million RCF. The final
maturity date of the new facility is 10 October 2028. The RCF are supplemented by £40 million non-
committed overdraft facilities which are reviewed annually.

Two term loans totalling £50 million {maturing in November 20286), to provide financing for the capital
investment and implementation of the new finance and HR systems in the second half of this financial
year, are now fully drawn and repayments have commenced. The balance on the term loans as at 30
April 2023 is £47.5 million (2022: £13.0 million).

The Board has reviewed Group cash flow forecasts and sensitivity analyses as part of the on-going
management of the business and is confident that headroom under the new banking facility
agreement remains adequate and there is a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies {continued)

New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted and impact on financial
statements

The following new standards or interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
ended 30 April 2023

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract (Amendmants to 1AS 37)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 — 2620

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments 1o 1AS 18)
Reference to the Conceptual Framework {Amendments to IFRS 3)

Adoption of these new standards and interpretations had no material impact on the Group’s financial
position or related performance,

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
At the date of autherisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective.

Date of
Description Effective date application
IFRS 17 insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 1 May 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Cantracts 1January 2023 1 May 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to 1AS 1 1 January 2023 1 May 2023
and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
Befinition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to 1AS 8) 1 January 2023 1 May 2023
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising 1 January 2023 1 May 2023

from a Single Transaction — Amendments to 1AS 12
Income Taxes

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 Comparative 1 danuary 2023 1 May 2023
Information (Amendments to IFRS 17)

Ciassification of Liability of Current or Non-current 1 January 2024 1 May 2024
(Amendments ta 1AS 1)

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to 1 January 2024 1 May 2024
IFRS 16)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants {Amendments to 1 January 2024 1 May 2024
IAS 1)

The members do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods. Beyond the information above, itis
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review
has been completed.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective or applicable

At the date of autharisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective and were
not applicable,

Date of
Description Effective date application
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Optionat Not applicable
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28)

Consolidation
The financial statements consolidate the results and financial position of the Group. Businesses

acquired or disposed of during the year are accounted for using acquisition accounting principles from
or up to the date control passed. Intra-group balances and transactions, excluding recharges that are
pass-through in nature, are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from contracts with clients
Revenue represents amounts chargeabile to clients for professicnal services provided during the year,

excluding third party invoiced disbursements where the Group is acting as an agent.

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled in exchange for providing legal services to clients. For each contract with a client, the
Group: identifies the contract with a client; identifies the performance obligation in the contract;
determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration;
allocates the transaction price to the performance obligation; and recognises revenue as the
performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer of the benefits of the services
promised to the client.

The Group recognises revenue over time as its performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use. The Group has a right to payment for work completed to date and the agreed
transaction price is typically based on hourly rates.

Revenue in respect of partially completed contracts with variable consideration is only recognised to

the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. This measurement constraint
continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill anising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businesses, representing the

difference between the fair value of the consideration given (either by way of cash or recognition of
members' capital and current accounts) and associated costs and the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired, is capitatised.

Computer software comprises purchased software licences and costs directly associated with the
development of software for internat use, which will generate future economic benefit. Computer
software is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is 1ested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised
fram the date they are available for use, on a straight-line basis gver the following esfimated economic
lives:

Computer software 310 7 years

Software license fees
In accordance with IAS 38, where it is determined that a cloud computing arrangement includes an

intangible asset, separately acquired intangible rights (software license fees) are recagnised as an
asset if the cloud computing arrangement is 1o be paid for over time.

The software license fee asset is initially recognised at the present value of the license obligation, and
subsequentty recognised at the initial valuation less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Software license fee assets are amortised from the date that the license is
available for use, on a straight-line basis over the life of the licensa. The software license fee assets
held at the reporting date had ticense periods of:

Software license fees 6 to 10 years

Crypto assets
Crypto assets can be classified into three broad categories based on their characteristics:

cryptocurrencies, asset-backed tokens and utility tokens. At the reporting date, the group held crypto
assets classified as asset-backed tokens and utility tokens.

An asset-backed foken is a digital token based on blockchain technology that signifies and derives its
value from something that does not exist on the blockchain but instead is a representation of
ownership of a physical asset.

Asset-backed fokens held at the reporting date were accounted for as a financial asset at fair value

through profit ar loss in accardance with IFRS 9. Fair value is rameasured at each reparting date using
the spot rate available through an independent trading platform.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies {continued)

Crypto assets (continued)
Utility tokens are digital tokens based on blockehain technelogy that provide users with access to a

product or service and they derive their value from that right. They can also be traded and sold for Fiat
currency. Utility tokens give holders no ownership in a company’s platform or assets and, although
they might be traded between holders, they are not primarily used as a medium of exchange.

Utility tokens held at the reporting date were accounted for as an intangible asset under the
revaluation model in accordance with IAS 38. Fair value is remeasured at each reporting date using
the spot rate avaitable thraugh an independent trading platform. Movements in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income, in accordance with 1AS 38.

Utility tokens are considered to have indefinite useful lives and as such are not amortised.

Crypto asset grants

All crypto assets held at the reporting date were received from non-government entities; the
agreements with those entities do not meet the criteria under IFRS 15 to be recognised as revenue, as
no goods or services are to be provided to those entities. Current accounting standards do net directly
address non-exchange transactions.

As per |AS 8, in the absence of an IFRS that specifically applies to a fransaction, management shall
use its judgement in devetoping and applying an accounting policy that resuits in infarmation that is
relevant and reliable. Although the transactions are not with any form of government, management
have determined that 1AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance, is the standard that is most closely aligned with the crypto asset transactions. Accordingly,
the guidance available in IAS 20 has been applied to the crypto asset transactions i.e. the crypto asset
grants.

The crypto asset grants received provide economic benefit to the Group and the primary condition of
the grants is that the Group develop a specified intangible asset.

Crypto asset grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to the grant and that the grant will be received. The grants received are
presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and are recognisad in profit or loss on a systematic

basis over the useful life of the intangible asset.

The Group presents grants recognised in the income statement separately as other income.
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DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Power Purchase Agreement {PPA)
In January 2022 the Group entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with a third-parly energy

supplier. The Group has agreed to acquire Renewable Enargy Guarantees of Origin (REGO)
certificates at a fixed price, with an embedded electricity derivative.

In June 2023 the PPA was amended to reflect increased costs in the construction phase due 10
current macroeconomic conditions. This amendment has not changed the Group's accounting
treatment.

The contract was entered into, and continues to be held for, the acquisition of REGQ certificates in
accordance with our own usage requirements. The cost te acquire the REGO certificates will therefore
be recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the energy output of the underlying assat.

Hedge accounting has nat been applied to the embedded electricity derivative; it has heen recognised
at fair value through profit or joss in accordance with IFRS 9.

Further details regarding the group’s exposure to risk is included in note 28, and information regarding
the methods and assumptions used to determine fair value is included in note 14.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic purchase cost, including incidental costs of

acquisition, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated so as ta write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis over the
foltowing estimated economic lives:

Leasehold property improvements Leasehold term
Fittings, furnishings & equipment:
Office fittings and furnishings  51to 8 years

Office equipment 3to 5 years
Computer equipment 2t 5years
Mator vehicles 3 years

Assets not yet available for use are not depreciated.

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

lmpairment of non-financial assets
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverabie amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Nan-financial assets, other than goodwill, that have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reparting date.

Investments
Investments are included at cost less any provision for impairment and are considered to be impaired

when their carrying valug is greater than their esiimated recoverable amount.
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Leases

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of a contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements
in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the incremental borrowing rate. An incremental
barrowing rate is estimated for each property by adding a risk premium to a risk-free rate. The risk
premium is calculated using the average office rental yield in the region less a long-term risk-free rate,
based on the 15-year government bend data for the region. The risk-free rate is determined from
government bond rates, with the duraticn of the bonds being the weighted average remaining lease
term, from commencement of the lease or 1 May 2019 for leases that existed at that date. Credit and
cauntry risks are also considered.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated balance sheet.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability {(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a carrespending adjustment to the related right-
of-use asset) whenever:

+ the lease term has changed, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate, in which cases the lease
liability is measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate;
or

« alease contract is modified and the lease modification is nct accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs, less any lease
incentives receivable. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and

canditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. The costs are included
in the related right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated balance sheet.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset and the end of the lease term.

33



DLA Piper International LLP

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The Group as lessee {continued)

The Group has elected to use the practical expedient which permits a lessee to not separate non-
lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a
single arrangement.

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to same of its leased properties.
As an intermediate lessar, the Group accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease ig classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Finangcial instruments

The Group classifies financial instrumants, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a
finarcial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
cantractual agreement.

The Group monitars its exposure and uses forward foreign exchange contracts when it deems it
appropriate and where it is commercially viable to hedge its exposure to currency risk.

Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, with movements reflected in the income
statement. The Group does not use hedge accounting for its forward fareign currency contracts and
does not use forward foreign currency contracts for speculative purposes.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised at fair value less any allowance for expected creqit losses. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime
expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To measure expectad credit [ossés on a collectiv
basis, trade receivables and contract assets are grouped based on ageing of the outstanding debts.
The expected loss rates are based on the Group’s historical credit losses experience over the two-
year pericd prior to the year end. The loss allowance also reflects current and forward-looking
econemic factors affecting clients.

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Contract assets
Contract assets are recognised when the Group has satisfied the performance abligations in the

e

caontract and either has not recognised a receivable to reflect its unconditional right to consideration or

the consideration is not due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts. These balances
are assessed to have low credit risk at the reporting date as they are held with reputable international
banking institutions, therefore no impairment has been applied.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and held at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities are recognised when a client pays consideration, or when the Group recognises a
receivable to reflect its unconditional right to consideration (whichever is earlier), before the Group has
provided the legal services to the client. The liability is the Group's obligation to provide legal services
to a client fram which it has received consideration.

Borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and drawn revolving credit facilities are recorded at the value of preceeds
on initial recognition. Interest is included in finance costs and is determined using the effective interest
rate method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The increase during the yearin
the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and the effect of any change in the discount
rate is charged to the income statement as an expense.

Professional indemnity claims
In the normal course of business, the Group may receive claims for alleged negligence. Professional

indemnity cover is maintained in respect of professional negligence through both the commercial
market and DLA Piper International LLP's wholly-owned captive insurance company. A gross provision
is provided in the financial statements on a prudent basis for all known claims where costs are likely to
be incurred, and represents an assessment of the cost of defending and concluding claims. To the
extent that claims are covered by professional indemnity insurance, an equivalent insurance
recoverable is recognised within receivables.

No separate disclosure is made of the cost and nature of claims covered by insurance, as to do so
could seriously prejudice the position of the Group. No amounts are included in liabilities in respect of
claims where the liability is possible but not considered likely, or in respect of claims incurred but not
reported.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
The Group accounts for pension costs in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. Staff pension

costs relating to the Group’s defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement when
they become payable. Provision is made for commitments in respect of annuities payable to retired
members. The provision is calculated as the present value of commitments in respect of the annuities
based on an actuarial valuation and is valued under the principles of IAS 19.
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Foreign currencies

Transactional currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in local reporting currency at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into reparting currency using the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. All
exchange gains and josses on franslation are included in the income statement. Non-monetary items
are recorded at the historic rate and are not subsequently retranslated.

Consolidation of subsidiaries

Profits and losses of subsidiaries which have currencies of operatian other than Sterling are translated
into Sterling at average rates of exchange. The batance sheets of subsidiaries which have currencies
of operation other than Sterling are transfated using the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date.

Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net assets of subsidiaries which
have currencies of operation other than Sterling are taken 1o the transiation reserve fogether with the
differences arising when the income statements are retranslated to Sterling from average rates to
rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

Drawings and capital

Drawings and maovements in capital denaminated in foreign currency are initially recorded in Sterling
within Members' interests at average rates of exchange. The exchange difference arising when these
are retranslated to Sterling at rates ruling at the balance sheet date are includad in Members’ interests
within net exchange adjustments.

Allocation of profits, drawings and distributions
During the year the Board sets the level of interim profit altocations and members’ monthly drawings

after cansidering the Group’s working capital needs. Individual member profit allocations are
calculated using a currency paints-based system.

Tao the extent that divided profits exceed drawings and distributions, then the excess profit is included
in the balange sheet under “Loans and other debts due to members’. Where drawings and
distributions exceed the divided profits then the excess is included in “Trade and other receivables”.
Undivided profits, together with any other differences between allocated and accounting profits, are
included in other reserves within “Members’ other interests™,

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises ali foreign exchange translation differences arising on consolidation

of the results and financial position of subsidiaries and cverseas branches which do not repart in
Sterling.

Qther reserves
Qther reserves comprise principaily unallecated profits arising in the current and previous periods

available for distribution in the future. This is treated as equity within the Group.
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Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to
pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they
crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
nat discounted.

Taxation
Income tax and capital gains tax (and their non-UK equivalents) payable an the profits of the Group

are sclely the persanal liahility of the individual members and consequently are not included within
these financial statements.

The corporate subsidiary companies included in these consolidated financial statements are subject t
tax based on their prefit or loss for the financial year and the tax regulations existing in the UK or the
respective country that each corporate subsidiary company resides. This corporate tax is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated by reference to the tax rates and laws effective in the relevant
countries during the financial peried.

Q
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2023

1 Critical accounting judgements and estimates

In the apnlication of the Graup’s accaunting policies, management are required to make judgements
(other than those involving estimations) that may have a significant impact on the amounts recognised
and to make estirnates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabitities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates andg associated assumplions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered ta be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
astimates are recogrnised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periads,

Critical accounting judgements

in the course of preparing the financial statements, no judgements have been made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting palicies, other than those involving estimations (see Key sources of
astimation uncertainty, as detailed below), that have had a significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Confract assets

There is uncertainty regarding the amount which will ultimately be recovered from clients in respect of
wark that has been performed but not billed at the year end. The fair vaiue of contract assets is
estimated on the basis of recorded time at the year end and expected recovery rates. It is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year that are different
from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected balances.

A 1% variance in the recovery rate applied to work in progress at year end would result in a change in
the fair value of contract assets at year-end of £2.6 million.

Calculation of expected credit lass allowance

The calculation of the expected credit Ioss allowance incorporates estimates of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon based on the analysis of historical data trends, the application of
assumptions and consideration of current and expected future economic conditions, Sensitivity
analysis of the loss rates applied is disclosed in note 29,
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2 Revenue

Revenue has been disaggregated into geographical regions as this information is regularly reviewed

by management in order tc evaluate financial performance:

Geographical regions

2023 2022

£'m £'m

United Kingdom 516.5 449.6
Europe 539.5 500.5
Middle East & Africa 84.3 55.5
Asia 138.4 122.4
Australia 129.9 112.3
Total group revenue 1,408.6 1,240.3

As revenue is billed primarily on the basis of agreed hourly rates, the Group has the right to invoice the
client the amount that corresponds directly with the value of work performed to date. Consequently,
the Group elects to apply the practical expedient to not disclose information about the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied at the

year end.

The LLP did not generate any revenue in the current or prior year.
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3 Staff costs

Group 2023 2022
£2m £'m

Salaries 424.6 37C.5
Social security costs 40.1 34.8
Other pension costs (note 24) 16.7 15.9
481.4 421.2

Total staff costs

The average manthly number of employees and self-employed practitioners (excluding members)
during the year was:

Group 2023 2022

Number Number
Fee earners 2,307 2,245
Trainees 391 367
Support staff 2,888 2,873
Total 5,586 5,485

There were no employees or refated costs in the LLP in the current or prior year,

4 Members

The average monthly number of members during the year was 689 (2022: 672}.
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5 Finance costs and finance income

Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Finance costs
Interest payable and similar charges:
- on bank loans and overdrafts 24 0.9
- onhlease liabilities 13.1 13.9
- unwinding of discount cn license fee liability 1.1 1.1
Total finance costs 16.6 15.9
Finance income
Bank interest receivable {1.2) {0.4)
Total finance income {1.2) {0.4)

The LLP did not incur any finance costs, or generate any finance income,

in the current or prior year.
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6 Operating profit

Group Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets charged to operating expenses 8 18.2 13.7
impairment of goodwill charged to operating expenses 8 - 0.1
Impairment of investments charged to operating expenses 11 0.2 -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

- owned assets 9 18.2 18.9

- right-of-use assets 10 48.2 491
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.1
Net foreign exchange ioss/(gain) 8.3 (0.4)
Expenses relating to shori-ferm leases 1.1 0.2
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets 0.3 0.3
Lease income from fand and buildings (1.9) 1.7
Total fees payable ta the auditar and its associates 8 1.5 13
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6 Operating profit (continued)

The fees payable to the auditor and its associates were as follows:

Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m

Audit fees
Audit of the parent and consolidated financial statements 0.2 0.2
Audit of associated entity financial statements 0.7 06
Total audit fees 0.9 0.8
Non-audit fees
Tax compliance services 0.2 0.1
Tax advisory services 0.2 0.2
All other assurance services 0.1 0.1
All other non-audit services 0.1 0.1
Total non-audit fees 0.6 0.5
Total fees payable to the auditor and its associates 1.5 1.3
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7 Tax expense in corporate entities

The financial statements do not incorporate any charge or liabiity for taxation on the resulis of the
limited liability partnerships or partnerships within the Group, where the relevant income tax and
capital gains tax (or non-UK equivalents) are the responsibility of the individual members.

There is no tax relating to other comprehensive income.

The tax charge included within these financial statements, which arises in the corperate entities within
the Group, is:

Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Current tax
Corpaoration tax charge based on profits for the:
- curent year 341 3.9
- prior year {0.5) -
Total current tax expense 2.6 3.9
Deferred tax 19
- origination and reversal of timing differences {0.4) 0.4
- adjustment to prior year 0.1 0.7
Total deferred tax (credit)/expenses (0.3) 0.3
Tax expense 2.3 4.2
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7 Tax expense in corporate entities (continued)

The current tax charge assessed for the year is higher (2022: higher) than the standard rate of
carporation tax in the UK of 18.50% (2022: 19.00%). The reasons are explained below:

2023 2022
£'m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 447.2 403.2
Less: Profit on ordinary activities subject to personal taxation {441.0) (421.3)
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities of corporate entities before tax 6.2 (18.1)
Tax at UK standard rate of 19.50% (2022: 19.00%) 1.2 (3.4)
Non-taxable income less expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2.4) 1.5
Shart term timing differences on which no deferred tax is recognised 2.8 4.9
Tax losses 1.8 1.2
Different tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 0.1 (0.1
Difference in change of tax rates {0.1) -
Adjustment in respect of prior year {0.4) Q.7
Other taxes (0.7} (0.6)
Total tax charge 2.3 42

Factors that may affect future UK tax charges
There was an increase in the UK main corporation tax rate from 19% to 25%, which was effective from
1 April 2023. This change in rate is reflected in these financial statements.
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8 Intangible assets

Group Goodwill Computer Licenses Crypto  Assets under Total
software assets  development

£'m £'m £m £'m £'m £'m
Cost
At 30 Aprit 2021 6.5 76.2 - - - 827
Additions 0.1 8.6 28.0 2.5 206 60.8
Disposals (6.5) (11.1) - - - {17.6)
Reclassifications - (3.1 - - - 3.0
Exchange adjustiments - 0.2 - 02 01 0.5
At 30 April 2022 0.1 70.8 290 27 20.7 123.3
Additions - 41.6 - - 3.5 451
Disposals @.1) {24.4) - 0.5) - (25.0)
Reclassifications - 17.9 - - {(17.1) -
Exchange adjustments - (@.1) - 0.2 {0.2} 0.1
Disposal liabilities held for sale - - - (2.4) (5.0 (7.4)
At 30 April 2023 - 105.0 29.0 - 1.9 135.9
Accumulated amortisation
and impairments
Al 30 April 2021 6.5 48.4 - - - 54.9
Amaortisation charge for the year - 10.8 28 - . 137
Impairment of goodwill 01 - - - “ 0.1
Disposals (6.5) (11.1) - - - (17.6)
Exchange adjustments - 0.1 . - - 0.4
At 30 April 2022 0.1 48.2 29 - - 51.2
Amortisation charge for the year - 15.0 32 - - 18.2
Disposals 0.1 (24.2} - - - (24.3)
Exchange adjustments - - . - - -
Disposal liabilities held for sale - - . . . -
At 30 April 2023 - 39.0 6.1 - - 45,1
Net hook value
At 30 April 2023 - 86.0 229 - 1.8 80.8
At 30 Aprit 2022 - 226 26.1 2.7 20.7 721

Included within assets under development is expenditure on the Group's new finance and HR systems, with a
carrying value of £1.8 million {2022: £19.0 miliion). Assets under development are not amartised.

The LLP did not hold any intangible assets in the current or prior year.
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Group Leasehold Fittings, Computer Motor Assets Total
property furnishings  equipment vehicles Under
improvements and equipment Construction

£m £m £m £m £'m £'m
Cost
At 30 April 2021 119.9 39.0 56.8 03 - 2160
Additions 6.6 2.7 5.4 0.1 - 14.8
Disposals (11.3) {9.3) (9.9) - - (30.5)
Reclassifications (1.8) {0.4) 0.4 - - (1.8
Exchange adjustments - - 0.1 - - 0.1
At 30 April 2022 113.6 32.0 52.8 0.4 - 1988
Additions 6.4 1.2 7.4 0.4 1.9 17.3
Disposals (20.1) (5.7) (18.8) (0.1) - (447
Reclassifications - 0.1 (0.1) - - -
Exchange adjustments (0.8) 0.5 04 (0.1) - -
At 30 April 2023 99.1 28.1 4.7 0.6 1.9 171.4
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 April 2021 52.3 26.9 42.8 - - 121.8
Charge for the year 7.5 3.5 7.8 0.1 - 18.9
Disposals {10.4) (8.6) (9.5) - - {28.5)
Reclassifications (1.0) (0.1} 0.1 - - (1.0)
Exchange adjustments - (0.3) 0.3 - - -
At 30 April 2022 48.4 214 41.3 0.1 - 111,2
Charge for the year 8.0 31 6.9 0.2 - 18.2
Disposals {18.8) (&.4) (18.8) - - (42.8)
Reclassifications - 0.2 0.2) - - -
Exchange adjustments (0.3) 0.4 0.4 0.1 - 0.6
At 30 April 2023 37.3 19.7 29.8 0.4 - 87.2
Net book value
At 30 April 2023 61.8 84 11.9 0.2 1.9 84.2
At 30 April 2022 65.2 10.6 11.5 0.3 - 87.6

As at 30 April 2023, the net carrying amount of motor vehicles held under leases was £0.2 million

(2022: £0.3 million).

Group capital commitments contracted but not provided for at 30 April 2023 amounted to £nil (2022:

£16.6 million).

The LLP did not hold any property, plant and equipment in the current or prior year.
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10 Right-of-use assets

Group Total
£m
Cost
At 1 May 2021 435.9
Additions 20.1
Disposals {14.8)
Raclassifications 1.6
Exchange adjustments 1.1
At 30 Aprit 2022 4435
Additions 33.5
Disposals (8.5)
Exchange adjustments 28
At 30 April 2023 471.8
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 May 2021 96.8
Charge for the year 481
Disposals (8.8)
Reclassifications 1.0
Exchange adjustments 1.4
At 30 April 2022 138.5
Charge far the year 48.2
Disposals 8.7)
Exchange adjusiments 0.4
At 30 April 2023 181.4
Net book value
At 30 April 2023 290.4
At 30 April 2022 304.4

Al right-of-use assets relate to properties.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 18.

The LLP did not hold any right-of-use assets in the current or prior year.
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11 Investments

Shares in Group undertakings

Group LLP
£'m £'000
Cost at 1 May 2021, 30 April 2022 and 30 April 2023 - 9
Other investments Group LLP
£2'm £'000
Cost at 1 May 2021 and 30 April 2022 0.3 -
Impairment {0.2) -
Cost and net book value of other investments at 30 April 2023 0.1 -
Total investments Group LLP
£m £'000
As at 30 April 2023 0.1 9
As at 30 April 2022 0.3 9

Investments in Group undertakings are stated at cost. The members consider the value of the

investments to be supported by their underlying net assets.

A list of the subsidiary undertakings is given in note 25.
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12 Trade and other receivables

Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Trade receivables 488.7 356.2
Other receivables 141 1.8
Insurance reimbursement asset (note 21) 7.4 1.7
Taxation and social security 1.9 1.7
toans and other debts due from members (note 22) 131.9 10€.3
Prapayments 29.8 323
Total trade and other receivables 673.8 513.0
Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Included in current assets 673.8 513.0
Included in non-current assets - -
Total trade and other receivables 673.8 513.0

There is no material difference between the fair value and the carrying vaiue of trade and other
recefvabtes.

Analysis of financial assets and associated risks is provided in note 29.
Amounts owed by members are repayable on demand, unsecured, and incur no interest.

The LLP has receivables of £1,000 relating to amounts owed by Group undertakings (2022: £1,000).

Movement in the allowance for credit loss provision 2023 2022
£m £'m
QOpening loss allowance 33.8 329
Settled in the year {15.5) {13.5)
Direct write offs {5.3) {9.2)
Mavement in provision on invaices outstanding at stan of the year 12.3 56
New provision arising on invoices raised during the year 21.9 18.1

At 30 April 2023 47.3 33.9
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Notes to the financial statements
12 Trade and other receivables {continued)

Allowance for expected credit losses

The Group has recognised an expected credit loss of £26.5 million (2022: £14.5 million) in the income
statement which incorporates write-offs incurred during the year and the movement on the expected
credit loss provision. The ageing of the receivables and allowance for expected credit losses provided
for are as follows:

Ageing Expected credit Carrying amount Allowance for
loss rate expected credit loss

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

% % £'m £'m £'m £m

Less than 1 month 1.8 2.0 251.4 176.8 4.6 36
1—3 months 25 2.9 110.4 50.9 2.8 26
3 — 6 months 7.6 8.1 64.1 49.1 49 4.0
6 — 9 months 25.5 22.2 27.8 135 7.1 3.0
9 =12 months 38.2 352 8.9 54 3.4 1.9
12 - 18 months 66.0 66.7 14.1 9.9 9.3 6.6
18 — 24 months 67.4 68.0 4.3 50 2.9 34
2—3years 768 76.5 8.2 5.1 6.3 3.8
Over 3 years 84.5 89.1 71 55 6.0 49
Total 496.3 361.2 47.3 339

The carrying amount in the calculation of the credit loss provision excludes VAT and cther taxation.

13 Contract assets

Group 2023 2022

£'m £'m
Contract assets 168.0 142.4
Revenue recognised in the period from performance cbligations satisfied in 3.8 17.7

previous periods

The contract assets value represents the conditional right to consideration for completed performance
obligations on a contract-by-contract hasis. Amounts are billed in accordance with agreed contractual
terms, either at periodic intervals or upon achievement of contractual milestones. Accounts receivable
are recognised when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

Changes in the contract assets balance during the year were not materially impacted by any specific
factors. The LLP did not have any contract assets in the current or prior year.
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14  Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilittes measured at fair valug in the balance sheet are grouped into
three levels of a fair value hietarchy. The three levels are defined hased an the hierarchy of significant
inputs to the measurement, as follows:

« Llevel 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than qucted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either diractly or indirectly

e level 3: unobservable inputs far the asset or liability.

The Group’s financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value are crypto assets, a PPA Electricity
derivative, and foreign currency forward contracts to buy and sell foreign currency against Sterling to
mitigate exchange rate exposure.

Crypto assets
The crypto assets held by the Group are classified as level 1 as they are traded in active markats.
These have been fair valued using the spot rate available through an independent trading platform.

The crypte assets held have been received as payment of grants. The fair vaiue of the crypto assets
held as at 30 April 2023 is an intangible asset of £2 4 million {note 8) and a finandial asset of £0.1
mitiion. These balances are held by Toko Limited and have been reclassified as disposal liabilities held
for sale at the year-end. Further details can be found in note 28.

PPA Electricity derivative

The PPA Etectricity derivative held by the group is part of economic hedge arrangements against
future electricity prices but has not been formally designated. The derivative is classified as tevel 2 as
an identical derivative is not traded in an active market. The derivative has been fair valued using
ohservable inflation and energy price forecasts.

The fair vaiue of the PPA Electricity derivative held as at 30 April 2023 is an asset of £3.2 million
(2022 £3.4 million).

Foreign ¢urrency forward contracts

The foreign currency forward contracts are classified as level 2 as they are not traded in active
markets. These have been fair valued using observable forward exchange rates and interest rates
corresponding to the maturity of the contract. The forward exchange contracts are considered by
management to be part of ecanamic hedge arrangements but have not been formally designated.

AL 30 April 2023, DLA Piper UK LLP, a subsidiary undertaking, had the following open foreign
exchange contracts:

+ Sell EUR 100.650 million against GBP on 2 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 1.135745
+  Sell USD 10.700 million against GBP on 2 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 1.247095

At 30 April 2023, DLA Piper Treasury Services Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, had the following
open foreign exchange contracts:
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Foreign currency forward contracts {continued}

Buy HKD 10.850 million against GBP on 3 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 9.793060
Sell JPY 162.500 million against GBP on 9 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 166.587800
Buy AUD 26.850 million against GBP on 3 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 1.887747
Buy JPY 30.000 million against USD on 1 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 135.790270
Sell EUR 13.925 million against GBP on 2 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 1.135834
Sell USD 13.525 million against GBP on 2 May 2023 at a fixed rate of 1.247085

The contracts have been taken out to hedge specific assets and liabilities that are expected to be paid
or received in foreign currency, in-line with the Group's risk management policy as detailed in note 29.
The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts as at 30 Aprit 2023 is an asset of £0.3 million
and a liability of £nil {2022 asset of £nil and a liability of £0.1 million).

15 Trade and other payables

Group 2023 2022

£'m £'m
Trade payables 62.3 587
Other taxation and social security 46.8 324
Other payables 33.0 358
Amounts owed to former members 9.4 17.1
Accruals and deferred income 98.8 80.9
License fees 24.4 27.2
Total trade and other payables 274.7 259.1
Group 2023 2022

£m £m
Included in current liabilities 2477 2241
Included in non-current liabilities 27.0 35.0
Total trade and other payables 2747 259.1

There is no material difference between the fair value and the carrying value of trade and other
payables.

Analysis of financial liabilities and associated risks is provided in note 29.

Amounts owed to former members are unsecured and are repayable based on the individually agreed
terms with the former members. Interest is payable subject to the interest regulations included within
the members' agreement.

The LLP has current other payables of £9,000 (2022: £9,000).
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16 Contract tiabilities

Contract fiabilities represent payments received in advance of the performance obligation within the

contracts. The associated revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is completed.
Changes in the contract liabilities balance during the year were not materially impacted by any specific

factors.
Group 2023 2022
£'m £m
Contract liabilities 18.0 13.7
Revenue recognised in the period from amounts included in 13.7 1323
contract liabilities at the beginning of the period ' ’
The LLP did not have any contract liabilities in the current or prior yaar.
17 Borrowings
Group 2023 2022
£'m £m
Bank loans 56.7 13.0
Revolving credit facilities (RCF) 15.1 -
Qverdraft 284 -
Total borrowings 100.2 13.0
Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Included in current liabilities 549 13.0
Included in hon-current liabilities 45.3 -
Total borrowings 100.2 13.0

Barnk loans comprise two unsecured term loan facilities totalling £47.5 million (2022: £13.0 miltion) and
an interest bearing loan held to fund the annual professional indemnity premium of £8.2 million (2022

£nif). The two term loans mature in November 2026 and provided financing for the capital investment
and implementation of the new finance and HR systems during the second half of this financial year.

Both are now fully drawn and repayments have commenced.
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17  Borrowings (continued)

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and are unsecured. Bank loans are unsecured.

There is no material difference between the fair value and the carrying value of borrowings.

Analysis of borrowings and associated risks is provided in note 29.

There are no borrowings in the LLLP in the current or pricr year.

18 Lease liabilities

Group 2023 2022

£'m £'m
Included in current liabilities 49.3 46.7
Included in nan-current liabilities 305.8 323.7
Total lease liabilities 355.1 370.4
Maturity analysis 2023 2022

£'m £'m
In cne year or less 60.9 60.1
in more than one year, but not more than two years 54.7 56.8
In more than two years, but not more than five years 129.3 137.0
In more than five years 177.8 197.0
Total lease liabilities 4227 450.9

The amounts included in the above maturity analysis are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and
differ from the amount included in the balance sheet because this is based on discounted cash flows.

The LLP did net have any lease liahilities in the current or prior year.
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19 Deferred tax

The movements on the Group’s deferred tax asset during the year are as follows:

Group

£'m
At 1 May 2021 0.7

Credited to income statement (0.3}
At 30 April 2022 0.4
Charged to income statement a3
At 30 April 2023 0.7

The Group’s deferred tax asset position may be analysed as follows:

Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Other timing differences 0.7 0.4
Total deferred tax asset Q.7 Q.4

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that a future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be utilised, and comprises temporary
differences between capital allowances and depreciation, losses and other shart term timing

differences.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date and expectad to apply in the period in which the temporary differences reverse.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rate applicable in the country of the entity to which it relates.

There was no deferred tax arising in the LLP for the year to 30 April 2023 {2022; £nil).
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20 Lease commitments

Leases of low value assets

Future minimum payments for leases of low value assets are as follows: 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Other — Group
Within one year 0.1 0.1
Between one and five years 0.2 0.2
After five years . -
Total 0.3 0.3
Future minimum receipts under leases are as follows: 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Land and buildings — Group
Within one year 1.9 1.5
Between one and five years 2.8 3.4
After five years - 0.2
Total 4.7 51

The LLP has no lease commitments at the balance sheet date {2022: £nil).
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21 Provisions

Group Annuities Restructuring Dilapidations  Claims Other Total
£m 'm £'m £'m £'m £'m
At 1 May 2021 1.8 1.5 16.2 - - 16.5
Utilised during the year - {1.5) {G.1) - - {(1.8)
Additional provisions - 15.6 0.3 - 0.2 16.1
Exchange adjustments - - 0.2 - - 0.2
At 30 April 2022 1.8 1586 16.6 - 0.2 342
:?ae;:;;sslﬂed from other i ] i 17 ) 17
Utifised during the year ©.1 {15.6) (0.7) (0.8) - (170
Additional pravisicns - 2.8 81 8.3 - 2.0
Exchange adjustments - - - - - -
At 30 April 2023 1.7 2.6 16.0 7.4 0.2 27.9
Group 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Included in current liabilities 16.5 223
Included in non-current liabilities 114 119
Total provisions for liabilities 27.9 342

The LLP did not have any provisions in the current ar prior year.
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21 Provisions (continued)

Annuities
The provision for annuities was based upen the valuation principles from 1AS 19 “Employee Benefits”.

The IAS 19 calculations were performed by an actuary as at 30 April 2013 and were based on the
capital value of the annuities in payment as at this date, calculated by discounting the future annuity
payments, Expacted undiscounted annual payments are £70,000 (2022: £69,000) relating to lifetime
annuities.

The major assumptions used by the actuary as at 30 April 2013 were:

Discount rate 3.1%

Price inflation assumption 2.9%

The Board consider it appropriate to obtain an updated calculation when there have been material
changes. No calculation has been obtained for the year ended 30 April 2023 as the scheme is closed.
The number of annuities in payment has remained at three, and the total annual gross annuity has
reduced from £103,000 to £85,000 since April 2013 so the difference between an updated calculation
and the provision of £1.7 million would not be material.

Restructuring provision

During the previous financial year the Group agreed to dispose of its investment in DLA Piper Rus
Limited. A provision for the loss on disposal was estimated from the sale agreement and completion
statement.

On 31 May 2022 the Group completed the disposal of DLA Piper Rus Limited and the £15.6 million
provision was fully utilised.

During the current financial year the Group began looking for external investment in one of its
subsidiaries, Toko Limited, this external investment would reduce the Group’s shareholding. As at 30
April 2023 the assets and liabilities were classified as held for sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
and the expected costs of the sale of £2.6 million have been provided for in the Cansclidated Income
Statement. See note 28 for further details.

Dilapidations

A provision for dilapidatians is recognised in respect of property leases which contain a requirement
for premises to be returned to their original state on conclusion of the lease term. For the purposes of
determining the dilapidation provision, estimates are made on the basis of advice from Chartered
Surveyors and previous experience of similar dilapidation cobligations. The leases to which the
provision relates all expire by 2038.

Claims

The claims provision accounts for the anticipated expenses that may arise from professional indemnity
claims filed against the Group for previous services provided. When it is deemed probable that there
will be a cash outflow for a particular claim, it is recorded as a provision with any applicable insurance
reimbursements being recognised as trade and other receivables (note 12),

59



e}

SIBQUIBLL WO} SNP S13P JaYjo pue

vies ) TiLs Uebe Trre ohe zesL SUBQ) BUIPNOX3 ZZ0Z INAY 05 1B SISl SIaqualy
€601 - £6at - <801 £'60L - (Z) 10U} SI3GWSW WIoY NP S)G9P JYj0 puE sueo
6°LCY - 6°LZY 0°€6Z 6PEY (£°g¢) A7} 7707 {UdY 0F 1€ S)SaUTu!  SISCUIN
{s'0) - (50} T 20 Z0 90 spuauisnipe sbueyaxa jay
(6°2.8) - (6°248) - le'22¢) (6248} - suonngustp pue sBupmein
{v5z) - {(yrgzd - ¥sz) - {g22) {@1) SOMNGEI JUSLIND 0] SPUNY SI2QUISW i9LLI0) JO J3jsuel |
{o'e) - osy) - {ogt) - (0cl) predal jeyded
vl - A - oLl - g4 paanposu feyden
- - - {L80%) 280y 1'80% - Woid paplaig
1’228 - Vize 0'c0L LEel {5°sp) 9694 Jedh sy 104 Jyosd Jaye SIS SIBGUIDNY
. . . sisquiaW BUOWE uoISiMp AIBUDIRIOSID 10) B|GEfiBAE
066e 0'86e 0'e6e ZZ0T iy OE PapUS 1B3A [BIUBLLY BUY 40} WOl
1'gey - (%747 0ot 1Pl {55y} a'6aL LZ0Z ABW | 18 SIS2UIaNN SISqUIIN
w.y w3 ur3 u,3 w3 wy w3
{Aunbe se Aupqen
|18alaym s1aquiaw paiysse(a} se paIsse|l)
Buyjonuod 0} SIqEINGLIIE SBAI3S3) sjunoue jeyude
fejo) -uop lewo L BYWo leloL LT To] SaqIsy

SI9qWIBW (WOA)/0) anp siqap 19Ul0 PUB SUeoT

s)salajul S1quBl  ZZ

Sjuawiale}s [eroueul] ayl 0} SajonN

d717 [euoneuiau] Jadid v1a@



19

SIaQUIBU WO} 8NP S)q9p 840 pue

185 L 9'9849 L'¥62 Y62 L'601 ¥'681
sueo| Buipn|axs £z0z [Udy 0 e sjsalajul s1aguiaiy
8LEL - §1lElL - B'LEL 6'lEL - {Z1 210U} SISQWBLI WOJ aNp S)gap 18YJ0 pue SUBOoT
8'6SY [ L'9sh L'¥62Z 9:Z91 {8°22) ¥'s8i £z0z Iudy 0 1€ 51Sa19)1U) SIequiay
e (') w Le £l - £ sjuswysnipe sbueyodxa jeN
(g1zv) - (€ 1zy) - {€1zw) (eLey - suonnguisip pue sBuimelq
(26} - (€5} - (€'6) (8°g) (g a) SAIH[IG.I| JUSLING C} SPUN} SI3QUIBL JBLLIO] 4O JBJSUBl |
(gez) - (gez) - 8¢z} - (gee) piedas |eyde)
128 - LiE - Lig 8l Z'se paonpouul jepde)
- - - {Levp) Lsvy LEvy - woud paping
8Z.8 e 9698 I'vel 6'vCl (e8g) TELL 189k 3y} 104 Jyoud J3)e S)salAUL  SISQUISIY
e zl . . ) _ ) ssaquwaw Buowe uoisiaip AIBUOIBIISIP 10} 8|qE]IEAE
£20Z 1udy g papua Jeak |elouBUY Y} 10} 1joid
- 0zZ (0'2) {0z} - - - SUOIEDLISSE[I8Y
6.2y - 6L2F 0¢6e &Fel (£'gg) FAA 8 ZZ0Z Aey | 1e s)S3u9)ul SJaguay
u.3 w3 w3 ¥ w3 w3 w3
{fnba se fAmqen
s)salaul slaquaw paiisse|o) se payisse|o)
Bunjonuos 0] 3|qEINgLijle  S9Al8Sal sjuncilue |endes
el -uoN lejoL Jey1Q [ejoL 240 Siaquiay

SIAGUAW (WGH)0) aNp S1Gap J9YJ0 puUE SUBOT

{(ponuiuoo) sysalaul siaqua|N ZZ

SJuUsaWaje)s [eloueulj ayj 0} S3JON

d17 feuonewayuy Jadid v1ad



DLA Piper International LLP

Notes to the financial statements
22 Members’ interests (continued)

‘Other amaunts’ included within loans and ather debits due to/{from) members represent allocated
profits not yet paid to members and are due within one year. The basis on which profits are allocated
and divided s described in the statement of accounting policies on page 36,

In the event of a winding up, loans and other debts due to members rank after bank loans and
averdrafts, but rank equally with ather unsecured creditors; members’ other interests (other reserves)
rank after unsecured creditors and no additional protection is afforded to creditors. Members’ capital
contribytions are determined by the Board having regard, inter alia, to the warking capital needs of the
Group. Individuai members’ capital contributions are set by reference to profit share proportions and
are not repayable until the member retires.

The LLP has members’ interests of £1,000 (2022: £1,000) and this wholly related to members’ capital

classified as a ligbility. The LLP did not trade during the current or prior year and, on that basis, a
Members' interests note has not been presented.
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23 Non-cash adjustments and change in working capital

The following non-cash flow adjustments and adjustments for changes in working capital have been

made to profit before tax to arrive at eperating cash flow:

Note 2023 2022
£'m £'m
Non-cash adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9 18.2 18.9
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 10 48.2 49.1
Amoaortisation of intangible assets 18.2 13.7
Impairment of goodwilf - 0.1
Impairment of investment 11 0.2 -
Reclassification of intangible fixed assets 8 - 3.1
{Gain)/ Loss on disposal of subsidiary 28 (1.8) 319
Lass on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 0.1
Unwinding of discount on license fee liability {1.1) {1.1)
Total non-cash adjustments 81.9 115.8
2023 2022
£'m £'m

Net changes in working capital
Increase in trade and other receivables (143.3) (20.2)
Increase in contract assets (25.3) (15.8)
{Increase)/ decrease in deferred tax asset {0.3) 0.3
Increase in derivative financial assets {0.1) (3.7}
Increase in trade and other payables 48.0 254
Increase in contract liabilities 4.2 0.9
Decrease in pravisions less unwinding of discount {8.8) (0.9)
Exchange adjustments 3.9 (0.2)
Total changes in working capital (121.7) {14.2)
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Notes to the financial statements
24 Pension costs

The Group has established a number of defined contribution pension schemes across most of its
offices, which receive cantributians from Group entities. The Group's legal or canstructive abligation
for these plans is limited to the contributions. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
thase of the Group.

The total pension cost for the Group was £16.7 million (2022: £15.9 million) and £0.2 million were
outstanding at the balance sheet date (2022: £nil).

The LLP did not incur any pension costs in the current or prior year.

25 Interests in other entities

The financial stalements consolidate the results and financiat position of the Group, including the
subsidiary undertakings listed below.

Limited liability partnerships

- DLA Piper UK LLP (provision of legal services and operates in England, Belgium, Germany
and China)

- DLA Piper Scotland LLP {provision of legal services and operates in Scotland)

- DLA Piper Middie East LLP (provision of legal services and operates in United Arab Emirates,
Quatar and Bahrain)

- DLA Piper Asia LLP {investment halding in Hong Kong, Poland, Thailand and Japan)

- DLA Piper Oman LLP (provision of iegal services and operates in Oman)

- DLA Piper Prague LLP (provision of tegal services and aperates in Czech Republic)

- DLA Piper Services LLP ({provision of management services to the Group and operates in the
United Kingdom)

- DLA Piper Eurape LLP (investment halding in Hungary and Ramania)

- DLA Piper France LLP {provision of legal services and operates in France)

- DLA Piper {ADME) LLP (provision of legal services and operates in the Abu Dhabi Global
Market)

- DLA Piper Ireland LLP (provision of legal services and operates in Ireland)

- Aldersgate TapCo LLP (investment halding in England, Hang Kong, Australia and the United
Arab Emirates)

- DLA Piper Gizinski Kycia Sp.k. {provision of legal services and operates in Poland)

All of the above are limited liability partnerships registered in England and Wales, with the exception of
DLA Piper Scotland LLP which is registerad in Scotland, DLA Pipar ireland LLP which is registered in
Ireland authorised to operate as a limited liability partnership, DLA Piper Gizinski Kycia Sp.k. which is
registered in Potand, and DLA Piper (ADME) LLP which is registered in the Abu Dhabi Global Market,

Partnerships (unlimited liability partnerships)
- DLA Piper Posztl, Nemescsdi, Gyarfi-Téth and Partners (aperates in Hungary)
- DLA Piper Studio Legale Tributario Associato (operates in ltaly)
- DLA Riper Hong Kong (operates in Hong Keng)
- DLA Piper Tokyo Partnership (operates in Japan)
- DLA Piper Dinu SCA (operates in Romania)
- DLA Piper Australia Queensland Partnership {operates in Australia)
- DLA Piper Australia National Partnership {operates in Australia)

The principat activity of the above partnerships 1s the provision of legal services.
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25 Interests in other entities (continued)

Country of
Company Principal activity incorporation
Fountain Trustee lelled ‘ Providing indebendent pénsion trustee services Engla'ni:l and Wales
. Clarson Sewlces Provision of secretarial serwces Hong Kong
t ailorylnsurance Services PCC lelted Undennmlng ofuinéurance R Guernsey
: BLA Plper Spam sLU Provision oflegal ser\nces ’ T Spaln
: ‘bLA Pnper"l:iold'mgs (Thallandv]Wlelted Holdnng company \ T Thailand
- DA Plper (Thallan&v)wﬁn:ﬁted T Provision gfldéngawlmgemces oo o Thailand
"mg*pmer Weiss-Tesshach Rechtsanwilte Provision of legal services T ‘ ’ ’ Slovakia
" Organiza¢na ZloZka o :
' 55~ Tessbach Rechtsanwalte Gth H
DLA Plper Italy Services SRL o Provision of EES’nSngﬁém senvices to DLA F;ipél" Studio Legalew ' 'Italvyz o
e . " Tribulario Assadiata | . B .
DLA Piper Singapare Pte. Ltd. Provision of legal services . Singapore
thuﬁiéérﬂl:k;n-ﬁmﬁong Manggémeni Services  Provision of services to DLA lwf’iﬁér Hong Kang e v ; Hong Kgng
Lirni .
T ited o o T Asset Tokenisation services & I-;ong Knng ‘
Toko FZE o T 77U AssetTokenisation serviess T . Bubai World Trade
. Free Zone
 DLA Piger Rus Uimitea? =~ 7 7" " " Provision of legal services o o Engiand and Wales
DLA Plper Nederland N wattto m e o Prﬁi}isié’“riwéf“leg“él"s'éﬁé"éxé ’ T B Netherlands
- " Provision of management services o DLA Piper Nederdand N.V.  Netherlands
i Derdengelden Advocatuur DLA Provision of mén;gemenl services to DLA Plper Nederland N.V. Netherlands
. Piper Nederland N.V. e e e o
! Stichting Prioriteit DLA Plper Nederland * Provision of management services to DLA Piper Nederand N.V. Netherlands
! (Netherlands}
DLA Piper Japan Services' KK : Provision of assets and services to DLA Plper Tokyo Parlnershlp Jaban
DLA Piper Hungary Services Kift Provision of management services to DLA Piper Posztl, Hungary
Nemescsdi, Gydrfi-Toth and Partners
DLA Piper Tax Consulting and Davelopment Provision of ac;.cbunting‘ bookkeeptng, additing and tax Hungany
Services Kft consultancy services
DL A Piper Services Bucharest SRL Provision of management services ta DLA Plper Dlnu 5CA ' Romania
DLA Piper Tax SRL Provision of |ndependen1 tax adwsory services Romania
PF Lawyers Pty Limited as trustee of the Australian Provision of management services to DLA Pnper Australia " Australia
Service Trust Partnerships
DLA Piper Luxembourg SARL Provision of legal services ’ ‘ p Luier}ihourg o
DLA Piper Treasury Services Limited Provision of treasury services : " England and Wales
DLA Piper Casablanca SARL Provision of legal services ’ ' Moracco
DLA Piper Advisary Services Proprietary Limited® Provision of general services " Bouth Afrlca o
DLA Piper GSC Poland sp. Z.0.0. Provision of services to lhe Group : h Poland
DLA Piper Intarnational Nominees Limited Holding mmpany ‘ England and Wales
DLA Piper Legal Delivery Centre Limited Outsourced pmcessmg services o B . England and Wales
DLA Piper Ireland Services Limited Provision of senices (o DLA Plper Ireland Ireland )
DLA Piper Business Advisory Kft Pravision of business adwsory semces Hungary
DLA Piper Investments Limited rnvestmenl holdlng company England and Wales
DLA Piper UK Nominees Limited Holdlng company ’ ’ Engl;nd and Wales
Aldersgate Holding Company Limited Tnvestment holdlng cokmhawny o Englénd and Wales
Aldersgate Funding Limited Provision of latlgaﬁon fﬁndmg solutlons o o Englénd and Wales
Aiscension.Al Limited Provision of artificiat i mtelllgenoe services T o Véngiand and Wales
Aldersgate DLS Limited Provision of financial congﬁl?ancy sennces o ‘ : Enéland and Wales
DLA Piper Business Advisory Pty Limited Provisian of consuitancy senvices B o "Australia
DLA Piper Busingss Advisory Limited Provision of cnnsultanw senvices T En‘aand and Wales
DLA Piper Business Advisory B.\. Provision of bu';iln(éssmaaviggr;us_ewices (ddnnantfp t Netherlands

1 Controlled under contractual arrangements.

2 Disposed of an 31 May 2022 and name subsequently changed ta Dénuo Legal Services Intemational Limited. See Note 28
2 Contralled by way of a priority share.

% Cantralled by way of a majarity share. 25% non-controlling interest recognised in the primary financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

25

Interests in other entities (continued)

Other than where disclosed in the above footncte, DLA Piper International LLP, or one of its subsidiary
undertakings, holds 100% of the beneficial interest in the equity shares in all company shareholdings.

All subsidiary undertakings have a year end of 30 April other than the following:

DLA Piper Studio Legale Tributario Associato

DLA Piper Posztl, Nemescsoi, Gyorfi-Toth and Partners
DLA Piper Gizinski Kycia sp.k.

DLA Piper Dinu SCA

DLA Piper Japan Services KK

DUA Piper Services Bucharest SRL

DLA Piper Tax Consutting KFT

DLA Piper Tax SRL

DLA Piper Tokyo Partnership

These entities have a year end of 31 December; however, their resulis and batance sheets to 30 April
are prepared for consolidation purposes.

DiLA Piper International LLLP, or one cof its subsidiary undertakings, also halds 100% of the beneficial
interest in the equity shares in the following non-trading subsidiaries (incorporated in England and
Wales unless stated):

A.8.B. Neminees Limitad

DLA Piper Excepted Scheme Trustee Limited

DLA Piper Hong Kong Services Limited

DLA Piper Limited

OLA Piper UK Nominees Limited

DLA Piper UK Pension Scheme Trustee Limited

DLA Limited (formerly DLA Piper UK Properties Limited, name changed on 4 Cclober 2022)
DLA Piper UK Secretarial Services Limited

Crawbird Trustees Limited

Polien Company Secretary Limited

Quill Form Limited

Quill Serve Limited

Secretar Securities Limited

Stichting Prioriteit DLA Piper Nederland (Netherlands)

The registered offices of all subsidiaries are presented on pages 77 to 78.
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25 Interests in other entities (continued)

The following subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in England and Wales with the exception of
DLA Piper Scotland LLP which is registered in Scotland, are exempt from the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of that Act:

Name of subsidiary

Registered number

DLA Piper UK Nominees Limited

02577952

DLA Piper International Nominees Limited 04847725
DLA Piper Investments Limited 11623760
DLA Piper Legal Delivery Centre Limited 04057308
DLA Piper Rus Limited 05234777
Fountain Trustee Limited 02588074
ﬁi:jcig:js)ion./-\i Limited (formerly Beacon. Al 12250658
Aldersgate Holding Company Limited 12215272
Aldersgate DLS Limited 12372164
Aldersgate TopCo LLP 0C431833
DLA Piper Scotland LLP 50300365
DLA Piper Middle East LLP 0C314942
DLA Piper Asia LLP 0C307601
DLA Piper Prague LLP 0C341606
DLA Piper Services LLP 0C305358
DLA Piper Europe LLP QC325978
DLA Piper France LLP QC385239

All directors/members of the above subsidiaries have issued written notice that all directors/members

agree to the audit exemption in respect of the year ended 30 April 2023. DLA Piper International LLP

guarantees the subsidiaries listed above, under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of

the year ended 30 April 2023.
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25 Interests in other entities {continued)

The following dormant subsidiaries of the Company have taken advantage under $394A of the
Companies Act 2006 exemption from preparing individual accounts. These subsidiaries are exempt
from the requirement to prepare individual accounts by virtue of this section.

[Name of subsidiary Registered number
| A.8.B. Nominees Limited 00983883

DLA Limited 033689707

DLA Piper Limited 05048236

DLA Piper UK Secretarial Services Limited 02577955

- 1
DLA Piper Excepted Scheme Trustee Limited 08945530
DLA Piper UK Pension Scheme Trustee Limited + 10695793

Crawbird Trustee Limited SC052573
Quill Form Limited SC100345
Quill Serve Limited S5C100347
Secretar Securities Limited 5C067650
l DLA Piper Glabal Services LLP QC310658

I Poiten Company Secretary Limited 10552093
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26 Contingent liabilities

In the normal ceurse of business, the Group may receive claims for alleged negligence. Professional
indemnity cover is maintained in respect of professional negligence through baoth the commercial
market and the firm’s wholly owned captive insurance campany. The Group’s policy with regard to
claims s described in the statement of accounting policies.

The Group and LLP had no contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2023 (30 April 2022: £nil).
27 Related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the senior partner and managing partner, other members of the
executive committee, the international practice group heads and the country managing partners. The
majority of key management positions maintain significant client responsibilities. The share of profit
and salaries awarded to these key management personnel for the year ended 30 April 2023 amounted
to £58.4 million (2022: £57.6 million).

LLP related party transactions
There were no transactions between the parent and its subsidiary undertakings, nor any other of the
parent’s related parties.

28 Business disposals

The Group has recognised a net gain of £2.6 million (2022: loss of £31.9 miliion) in respect of profits
and losses on agreed sale or closure of non-core businesses within the Consolidated Income
Statement. This consists of £5.2 million gain in relation to the disposal of the Russian entity (DLA Piper
Rus Ltd) in the current year, offset by a provision of £2.6 million in relation to the expected reduction in
the Group's shareholding in Toko Limited.

The profits/iosses arising on the sale or closure of non-core businesses and associated impairment
charges have been disclosed underneath Operating Profit in the Consclidated income Statement in
order to present the underlying earnings of the Group.

No businesses divested during the year are considered to be either separate major lines of business
or geographical areas of operaticn and therefore do not constitute discontinued operations as defined
in IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Businesses disposed during the year

As disclased in the 2022 Members Report and financial statements, the Russian business was sold on
27 May 2022 with an effective date of 31 May 2022. In the current year a gain on disposal of £5.2
million (2022: loss of £31.9 million) has been recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement,
calculated as follows:
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£'m
Net liabilities at date of disposal 1.6
Other disposal costs incurred (28.3)
Total loss on disposal of subsidiary (26.7)
Total loss recognised as at 30 April 2022 319
Current year profit in the Consolidated Income Statement 52

Businesses held for sale as at 30 April 2023

Prior to the year end the Group began looking for external investment in one of its subsidiaries, Toko
Limited; this external investment wauld reduce the Group’s shareholding. As at 30 April 2023 the
assets and liabilities were classified as held for sale (£5.2 million) on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
and the expected costs of the sale of £2.8 million have been provided for in the Consolidated Income
Statement.

29 Financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies

Financial instruments comprise frade and other receivables, amounts due from members, cash and
cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, equity investments, borrowings, finance leases,
trade and other payables, amounts owed to former members and property provisions. Financizl
instruments result in the Group being exposed to liquidity, credit, interest rate and foreign currency
risks.

The carrying amount of financial instruments are as follows:

Group LLP

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'m £'m £'000 £000

Financial assets held at amortised cost
Trade receivables 12 488.7 356.2 - -
Contract assets 13 168.0 142.4 - -
QOther receivables 12 14.1 11.8 1 1
Loans and other debts due from members 12 131.9 109.3 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 64.0 105.3 - -
Investments 11 0.1 0.3 - -
Total financial assets held at amartised 866.8 725.3 1 1

cost
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29 Financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

Group LLP
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'m £'m £000 £'000
Financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss
PPA Electricity derivative 14 3.2 34 - -
Crypto assets 14 0.1 0.1 - -
Derivative financial instruments 14 0.3 - - -
Total financial assets held at fair value 3.6 35 - -
through profit or loss
Group LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
Borrowings 17 100.2 13.0 - -
Lease ligbilities 18 355.1 370.4 - -
License fee liabilities 15 24.4 27.2 - -
Trade payables 15 62.3 55.7 - -
Other payables 15 33.0 358 9 9
Contract liabilities 16 18.0 13.7 - -
Amounts owed to fermer members 15 94 17.1 - -
Total financial liabilities held at amortised 602.4 53z2.9 9 9
cost
Group LLP
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'m £'m £00 £'000
Financial liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments 14 - 0.1 - -
Total financial liabilities held at fair value - 0.1 - -

through profit or loss
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29 Financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies {continued)

Credit risk and sensitivity analysis
In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has adapted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy clients

by performing credit checks and establishing credit limits for new clients. The status of debt coltections
is monitored monthly by the credit cantrol team, ensuring Group targets are affectively supported.

Trade receivables comprise a large range of clients covering a diverse geographical area. The Group
does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties
having similar characteristics.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS @ to measure the lifetime expected credit loss.
Note 12 discloses the credit risk profite of irade receivables.

if the expected credit loss rates were increased by 1%, the total loss allowance on receivables would
have been £5.0 million higher.

Interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk expasures on long-term financing.

Longer-term borrowings are usually at fixed rates and overdrafts are at variable rates.

Bank borrowings at 30 April are as follows:

2023 2022

£'m £'m

Interest rate of SONIA + 1.30%, repayable November 2026 25.0 6.5
interest rate of SONIA + 1.40%, repayable November 2026 22.5 8.5
Interest rate of 5.09% fixed, repayable December 2023 9.2 -
Bank loans 56.7 13.0

Interest rate of SONIA + credit adjustment spread + 1.15%, repayable May 2023 125 -

Interest rate of 3 month BBSY + 0.70%, repayable June 2023 2.6 -
RCF 16.1 -
Total bank borrowings 71.8 13.0
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29 Financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies {continued)

Cash and cash deposits of £64.0 million (2022: £105.3 million) and overdrafts of £28.4 (2022: £nil) are
alsc exposed to interest rates. Interest is earned and paid predominantly at variable interest rates
linked to local bank base rates.

The Group minimises interest rate cash flow risk exposures on cash and overdrafts by utilising a
central Group overdraft facility and ensuring that wherever possible any cash available in the Group is
utilised to clear down the Group overdraft facility.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date and assuming the liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. If interest rates were 1% higher and alt other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit and net assets for the year ended 30 April 2023 would
have decreased by £0.6 million.

Liquidity risk and sensitivity analysis
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group might be unable to meet its obligaticns.

The Group is financed through a combination of members’ capital, undistributed profits and borrowing
facilitics provided by a number of banks.

The total amount of members’' capital contributions is proposed to members by the Board, having
regard to the requirements of the Group. Individual members' capital contributions are set by reference
to equity profit share proportion, or in the case of non-equity members, comprise either a fixed amount
or a percentage of profit share, and are repayable, at par, following the member’s retirement.

The Group has in place facilities ta cover short-term working capital requirements and has a policy of
active management and targeting trade receivables and amounts due fo be billed fo clients, to
minimise the level of short-term borrowings. All short-term borrowings are arranged through DLA Piper
Treasury Services Limited, a subsidiary undertaking of the LLP.

As at 30 April 2023 the Group had access to total bank facilities of £274.6 million (2022: £216.0
million}, which includes £42.1 million (2022: £48.4 million) of averdraft facilities that may be terminated
by the bank without notice. During the financial year an additional temporary committed overdraft
facility of £50.0 million was put in place on 1 April 2023 as a contingency to support working capital
requirements following the implementation of the new finance system with a maturity date of 31
December 2023. At the balance sheet date, the Group utilised £100.2 million (2022: £13.0 million) of
the total bank facilities.

In October 2023 the Firm successfully refinanced its banking facility agreements made up of
committed revolving credit facilities (RCF) totalling £117.5 million which were due to mature on 29
February 2024 and a committed £560 million overdraft due to mature on 31 December 2023. The new
three-year banking facility (with two optional one-year extensions) is a £160 million RCF. The final
maturity date of the new facility is 10 October 2026. The RCF are supplemented by £40 million non-
committed overdraft facility which are reviewed annually.
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29 Financial instruments and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

Bank loans comprise of two unsecured term loan facilities totalling £47.5 million (2022 £13.0 million)
and an interest bearing loan held to fund the annual professional indemnity premium of £9.2 million
(2022 £il). The two term loans mature in November 2026 and provided financing for the capital
investment and implementation of the new finance and HR systems during the second half of this
financial year. Both are now fully drawn and repayments have commenced.

Under the terms of the banking facility agreements, the Group is required 1o comply with covenants
including the following: the number of full equity members is not less than 500, the amount of
Members' capital is greater than £1080 million, total net borrowings is not greater than 100% of
Members' interests. The group has complied with these and all other covenants throughout the
reporting period.

As at 30 April 2023, the contractual maturity of financial liabilities (including interest payments where
applicable) was as follows:

2023 2022
£m £'m

Maturity of financial liabilities
In ane year or less, or on demand 288.6 198.8
In more than one year, but not more than two years 60.0 51.1
In maore than two years, but not more than five years 140.9 1461
In more than five years 187.4 209.7
Total 676.9 618.7

The above amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the
carrying values of the liabilities at the reporting date.

Foreign currency risk and sensitivity analysis

The presentational currency of the Group is Sterling. However, with offices in many different countries,
the Group's operations are conducted in various currencies. The principal currencies, other than
Sterling, to which the Group's financial assets and liabilities are exposed are the Euro, the US Dollar
and the Australian Daollar.

To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk, nan-Sterting cash flows are monitored and
forward exchange contracts are entered into in accordance with the Group's risk managemerit
policies. Where the amounts ta be paid and received in a specific currency are expected to largely
offset one another, no further hedging activity is undertaken. Forward exchange contracts are mainly
entered into for significant foreign currency exposures that are not expected ta be offset by other
same-currency fransactions.
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29 Financial instruments and financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities which expose the Group to financial

statement currency risk are as follows:

2023 2022
£'m £'m
Financial assets
Euros 288.4 235.5
US Dollar 183.5 140.2
Australian Dollar 39.7 31.1
Other 56.4 50.4
568.0 457.2
Financial liabilities
Euros 181.9 152.2
UsS Dallar - 0.2
Australian Dollar 38.6 458
Other 88.5 81.0
309.0 278.0
if the Euro, Australian Dallar and US Dollar had weakened against all other currencies, the impact on
the profit before tax and net assets as a result of retranslating financial assets and liabilities would
have been as follows:
Profit Net assets
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Euro 5% weaker {1.1) {0.8) {7.9) (2.6)
US Dollar 5% weaker {8.7) {6.2) {8.7) (6.2)
Austratian Dollar 5% weaker - - {0.1) C.6
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30 Net debt reconciliation

Members’
capital Other
classified amounts
Lease asa owed to Cash and

Borrowings liabilitiss liagbifity  members overdraft Total
Net debt £m £'m £'m £m £'m £m
At 1 May 2021 - (398.9) (169.6) 23.6 91.3 (453.6)
Financing cash flows (12.1) 56.8 (4.6) 408.1 14.2 462.4
Non-cash 0.9 (28.3} 1.0 (410.5) 0.2 {438.9)
At 30 April 2022 (13.0) (370.4) (173.2) 21.2 105.3 (430.1)
Financing cash flows (56.43 820 (12.3) 428.3 709 360.5
Non-cash {2.4) (46.7) 1.1 (448.1) 0.4 (493.7)
At 30 Aprif 2023 {71.8) {355.1) {185.4) 13.4 35.6 {563.3)

31 Subsequent events

In October 2023 the Firm successfully refinanced its banking facility agreements made up of

committed revolving credit facilities (RCF) totalling £117.5 million which were due to mature on 29
February 2024 and a committed £50 million overdraft due to mature on 31 December 2023. The new
three-year banking facility (with two optional one-year extensions) is a £160 million RCF. The finai

maturity date of the new facility is 10 October 2026, The RCF are supplemented by £40 millicn non-
committed overdraft facilities which are reviewed annually.

32 Ultimate controlling parties

The LLP is controlled by its members and as such there is na ane single ultimate contralling party.
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Registered Office Listing

United Kingdom

- DLA Piper UK LLP

- DLA Piper Asia LLP

- DLA Piper Eurape LLP

- DLA Piper Excepted Scheme Trustee Limited

- DLA Piper France LLP

- DLA Piper International Nominees Limited

- DLA Piper Investments Limited

- DLA Piper Legal Delivery Centre Limited

- DLA Piper Limited

- DLA Piper Middle East LLP

- DLA Piper Oman LLP

- DLA Piper Prague LLP

- DLA Piper Services LLP

- DLA Piper Treasury Services Limited

- DLA Piper UK Nominees Limited

- DLA Piper UK Pension Scheme Trustee Limited
- DLA Limited {formerly DLA Piper UK Properties Limited)
- DLA Piper UK Secretarial Services Limited

- Aldersgate DLS Limited

- DLA Piper Business Advisory Limited (formerly Aldersgate DLS (Reg)

Limited)

- Aldersgate Holding Company Limited
- Aldersgate Topco LLP

- A.S.B. Nominees Limited

- Aiscension. Al Limited

- Fountain Trustee Limited

- Pollen Company Secretary Limited
- DLA Piper Scotland LLP

- Crawbird Trustee Limited

- Quill Form Limited

« Quill Serve Limited

- Secretar Securities Limited

- Aldersgate Funding Limited

- DLA Piper Rus Limited - disposed of on 31 May 2022 and name
changed to Dénuo Legal Services International Limited)

Australia
- DLA Piper Australia National Partnership

- DLA Piper Australia Queensland Partnership
- DLA Piper Business Advisory Pty Limited (formerly DLAPC Pty Lid)

- PF Lawyers Pty Limited as trustee of the Australian Service Trust

160 Aldersgate Street
London
EC1A 4HT

Callins House
Rutland Square
Edinburgh

EH1 2AA

120 Aldersgate Street
London
EC1A 4HB

C/O Tmf Group

8" Floor

20 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

Level 22

No.1 Martin Place
Sydney

NSW 2000

Level 9

480 Queen Street
Brishane

QLD 4000

Level 22

Na.1 Manrtin Place
Sydney

NSW 2000
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Austria
- DLA Piper Weiss-Tesshach Rechtsanwiite GmbH

Guernsey
- Maltory Insurance PCC Limited

Hong Kong

- DLA Piper Hong Kang

- Clarson Services Limited

- DLA Piper Hong Kang Services Limited

- DLA Piper Hong Kong Management Services Limited

- Toko Limited
Hungary

- DLA Piper Poszil, Nemescsol, Gyorfi-Téth and Partners
- DLA Piper Hungary Services Kit

- DLA Piper Tax Consulting Kft

- DLA Piper Business Advisory Kit

{reland

- DLA Piper Ireland LLP
- DLA Piper treland Services Lid

Italy

- DLA Piper Studio Legale Tributario Associata
- DLA Piper italy Services SRL

Japan

- DLA Piper Tokyo Partnership
- DLA Piper Japan Services KK

Luxembourg
- DLA Piper Luxembourg SARL

Morocco
- DLA Piper Casablanca SARL

Schottenring 2-6
A-1010
Vienna

P.O. Box 155

Mili Court La Charroterie
St. Peter Port

Channel tslands

GY1 4ET

25th Floor

Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Cenfral, Hong Kong

Momentum Office Building
Csbrsz u. 49-51.
Budapest

H-1124

40 Malesworth Street
Dublin 2

Irefand

DG2 YV57

Via della Posta 7
20123
Milan

Meiji Seimei Kan 7F

2-1-1 Marunaouchi Chiyada-ku
Tokya

100-0005

37A, Avenue John F. Kennedy
L-1855
Luxembourg

CFC Cube Tower
13" Floor
Casablanca
20250

Meorocco
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Netherlands

- DLA Piper Nederland N.V.

- Stichting Financiering DLA Piper Nederland

- Stichting Beheer Derdengelden Advocatuur DLA Piper Nederland
N.V.

- Stichting Priariteit DLA Piper Nederland (Netherlands)

Poland

- DLA Piper Gizirski Kycia Sp k.
- DLA Piper GSC Poland sp. z.0.0.

Romania

- DLA Piper Dinu SCA
- DLA Piper Services Bucharest SRL
- DLA Piper Tax SRL

Singapore
- DLA Piper Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Slovakia
- DLA Piper Weiss-Tessbach Rechtsanwélte Organizatna Zlozka

South Africa
- DLA Piper Advisory Services Proprietary Limited

Spain
- DLA Piper Spain S.L.U.

Thailand

- DLA Piper Holdings {(Thailand) Limited
- DLA Piper {Thailand) Limited

United Arab Emirates
- DLA Piper (ADME) LLP

Amstelveenseweg 638
Amsterdam
1081 JJ

. L. Pereca 1
Warsaw
00-849

Metropolis Center

89-97 Grigare Alexandrescu Str.
East Wing, 1st Floor

Sector 1, 010624

Bucharest

80 Raffles Place
UOB Plaza 1, #48-01
Singapore

048624

Karadzidova 2 SK-811 09
Bratislava

&th Floor

61 Katherine Street
Sandton 2196
Johannesburg

Paseo de la Castellana
39 -2° 28046
Madrid

47th Floor, Unit 4707
Empire Tower

1 South Sathorn Road
Yannawa, Satharn
Bangkok

10120

Al Khatem Tower

14-105, 14, WeWork/Hub71
Global Market Square

Al Maryah Island

Abu Dhabi,

United Arab Emirates
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